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Empowering Sri LankansEmpowering Sri LankansEmpowering

The beginnings of the Regional Development Bank (RDB) can be traced 

back to as far as 1985 when district level banks under the category of Rural 

Regional Development Banks were established. Later in 1997, seventeen 

such rural regional development banks were merged into six provincial level 

banks, which functioned as Rajarata, Ruhuna, Wayamba, Uva, Kandurata 

and	Sabaragamuwa	Development	Banks.	In	May	2010,	these	six	banks	

were merged into one national level bank and designated as the Pradheshiya 

Sanwardana Bank (Regional Development Bank/RDB). The Bank was 

established as a statutory body under the Pradheshiya Sanwardana Bank 

Act	No.41	of	2008.	the	100%	Government	owned	bank	was	set	up	with	the	

objective of improving the living standards of the rural masses by providing 

them accessible and affordable credit facilities that in turn would contribute 

to strengthen the rural economy. Originally based on the “barefoot banking 

concept,”	the	bank	strives	to	provide	innovative	yet	simple	fi	nancial	services	

to those at the middle and bottom of the income pyramid.

The bank is keen on empowering its’ customers in the micro, small and 

medium scale industries, women as well as the agriculture, livestock and 

fi	sheries	industries	who	would	in	turn	contribute	towards	the	country’s	

economic development. Bank has also taken steps to inculcate the savings 

habit	amongst	the	rural	people	providing	higher	returns	on	savings	and	fi	xed	

deposits, and encouraging school children and minors to save.

The results have been most encouraging and today the bank is proud to 

have established over 3.5 million loyal customer base and over 250 service 

points and given employment to 2300 plus staff members.

Our Heritage 
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	 	 	 	 	 t	 is	with	much	satisfaction	 that	 I	present	 the	Annual	Report	 for	 the	fi	rst														

8 months in operation for the Regional Development Bank. The 8 months, starting 

from	May	2010	to	December	2010,	has	been	a	unique	period	in	the	history	of	

rural development banking in the country.  6 Provincial level banks which were 

originally formed in 1985 by amalgamating 17 District level banks were 

amalgamated into one national level bank. This merger have consolidated over 

25 years of experience in rural development banking at the grass root level in 

the country with a branch network of over 250 and a staff base of over 2300. 

The merger has been very timely in the context of the macroeconomic 

environment	in	the	country,	with	all	indicators	of	fi	nancial	stability	settling	down	

at desirable levels for the country to takeoff on an aggressive 

development	 drive	 in	 the	 aftermath	 of	 ending	 a	 30	 year	 old	 confl	ict.	 the	

objective of establishing the Regional Development Bank is to facilitate overall 

regional	economic	development	by	promoting	agriculture,	fi	sheries,	livestock	

and empowerment of women and SME’s. The amalgamation has resulted in 

consolidating	 fi	nancial	 stability,	 make	 way	 for	 investments	 into	 stronger	

infrastructure, marketing, technologically advanced customer service and 

human resource development.

The eight months since the merger has been one of consolidation of 

practices of 6 families or 6 different corporate cultures into one family with one 

vision, which is “to take Sri Lanka towards prosperity by empowering people 

through	regional	economic	development”.	With	not	even	3	quarters	since	the	

amalgamation,	it	is	diffi	cult	to	evaluate	fi	nancial	performance	nor	compare	any	

growth over previous years.  However, we are happy to report that the bank 

has	made	Rs.	1	billion	profi	t	and	has	a	deposit	base	of	Rs.	37.90	billion	and	a	

credit	portfolio	of	Rs.	37.1	billion,	and	the	bank	closed	at	a	NPL	ratio	of	2.9%	

as of December 31, 2010. Our bank also faced the challenges of decreasing 

interest rates which showed a decrease in interest income which was however 

mitigated	by	 the	decrease	 in	 interest	expenses	and	hence	 resulted	 in	profi	t	

growth. 

 

The focus of the management and the Board of Directors during this 

transition period have been to consolidate all policies and operational 

procedures that have been practiced by the 6 provincial banks over the years 

into one practical way to ease the smooth functioning of the bank at national 

level.		this	included	restructuring	of	organization	structures,	re-defi	ning	tasks	

and functions at various levels in the organization structure, hiring and 

training new staff, orientation of staff into the new vision, mission and 

corporate	culture,	re-branding	the	bank	and	all	its’	products	at	national	level,	

re-branding	and	expansion	of	the	existing	branch	network	etc.

I
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Some of the major milestones during this period has been the completion of a system 

study to analyse the existing IT requirements of the national level bank and indentifying 

the requirements of a new core banking solution.   Another success has been                          

the positive reaction of the bank’s staff and the target customers to the bank’s new 

branding and the appropriate selection of its’ logo, which is the Valampoorri, a symbol 

of prosperity and the tagline, “depayin nagitina Sri Lankikayinta”. Further, the                        

appearance of the new branches with more modern yet contemporary facilities, have 

also motivated the staff to look forward to a more comfortable working environment to 

them and the customers.  Other milestones are the completion of the feasibility  studies 

for north and east expansion which will be rolled out in 2011 and the completion of a             

5 year corporate plan which will especially focus on the aspect of improving sustainable 

competitiveness by improving service levels and productivity of the bank through           

investments into infrastructure, human resource development and business                       

processes. 

With most of the background setting completed, and with most of the initial  

teething problems over, we are now geared to take off into a growth trajectory in 2011 

and the bank is well on its’ way to becoming the leader in SME banking, empowering 

its’ core target group of customers in rural Sri Lanka.   In 2011, one of the most                

significant changes in Regional Development Bank will be the implementation of an          

advanced core banking solution connecting over 250 branches of the bank which will 

result in more efficient customer service and improved productivity of the bank’s           

operations. The other plans include a new program to encourage the development          

of 20 new SME industries in every town/village that the bank operates, and the               

expansion in to the northern and eastern provinces to capture a hitherto untapped 

market for Regional Development Bank. Further to this, new monitoring and evaluation 

systems will be implemented to measure the performance of the bank in terms of 

productivity and service levels.

The management team of the bank is ably guided by a Board of Directors consisting of 

reputed professionals with a vast amount of experience in various fields which is again 

a great asset and value addition to the bank to charter its’ path in the coming year 

which will be its’ first   full year of operations.  My sincere gratitude is extended to            

my fellow Directors for their unstained co-operation and support during this                             

difficult transition time for the bank.   I must also thank Ms. Sujata Cooray for her            

valuable guidance during the setting up of the bank as the representative of the         

Treasury on the Board. The bank also has a highly experienced management team  

and a dynamic and skilled group of employees that supported the GM/CEO and the 

management team during this transition period.  
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On behalf of the Board, I wish to convey my appreciation to the GM/CEO, the                 

management team and the staff for their untiring efforts and dedication during the        

period under review. The guidance and support extended to us during this period by 

His Excellency the President as the Minister of Finance, the Governor of the Central 

Bank and its’ officials, the Secretary to the Treasury and the officials of the Treasury and 

the Ministry of Finance have been extremely helpful and encouraging.  I would also like 

to thank our auditors, Ernst and Young and The Department of the Auditor General for 

conducting the year end audit. Finally, a special thank you to all our stakeholders            

and business partners for the trust and confidence placed in our bank and most            

importantly our customers who have made us grow from strength to strength in the 

past and whose aspirations we will help achieve through win-win partnerships that we 

form with them in this new era of the bank and Sri Lanka. 

Janaki Kuruppu 

Chairperson 
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iNdm;ss;=ñhf.a m◊úvh

m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok nexl=fõ m%:u udi wo i`oyd jk jdr®Isl jdr®;dj ud úiska 

b†˙m;a lrkq ,nkafka b;du;a ;Dma;su;a ye`.Sfuks' 2010 uehs udifha isg 2010 

foieïnr® olajd jk udi woc ld, iSudj foaYfha m%df~aYSh ixjr®Ok nexl= 

b;sydih ;=< b;d iqúfYaIS jQ ld, m˙Éf√ohla iksgqyka lrhs' †ia;%sla uÜgñka 

msysgqjk ,o nexl= ‡y{ca tla lrñka 1985 ° ia:dms; lrk ,o m<d;a uÜgfï 

nexl= yhca tla cd;sl uÜgfï nexl=jla njg taldnoaO lrñka m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok 

nexl=j ia:dms; lrkq ,eì◊' .%dóh ixjr®Ok nexl=lrKfha ìï uÜgfï jr®I 

25lg jeä m<mqreoao" 250lg wêl YdLd cd,h iy 2300lg wêl ldr®h 

uKav,hla taldnoaO ùu fuys° is≥úh'

YS% ,xldfõ idr®j wdr®:sl miqìu ie,lSug .;a l< fï taldnoaO ls¯u b;d u 

ld,Sk mshjrla jYfhka ie,lsh yelsh' thg fya;=j jr®I ;syl muK ld,hla 

mqrd mej;s hqoaOh ksudùfuka miqj fõ.j;a wdr®:sl jr®Ok w†hrlg msúiSu 

i`oyd wjYH jkakd jQ uQ,H ia:djr;ajh ms<sn`o ishÆ ksr®Kdhlhka fï jljdkqj 

jkúg hym;a yd wjYH uÜgug meñK ;sîuhs' m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok nexl=j 

ia:dms; ls¯fï wNsu;dr®:h jkafka lDIslr®uh" ëjr lr®udka;h yd i;aj 

md,kh m%jr®Okh ls¯u" ldka;djka iún, .ekaùu yd l=vd yd uOH m˙udK 

lr®udka; †˙.ekaùu u.ska fmd≥ m%dfoaYSh wdr®:sl ixjr®Okh i`oyd myiqlï 

iïmdokhhs' fuu taldnoaOlrKh ksid nexl=fõ uQ,H ia:djr;ajh jvd;a 

Yla;su;a ùu fya;=fjka há;, myiqqlï ixjr®Okh ls¯ug;a" ;dlaI◊l jYfhka 

jvd;a kùk md˙fNda.sl fiajdjka iemhSug;a udkj iïm;a ixjr®Okh;a i`oyd 

wjYH jkakd jQ wdfhdackhka is≥ls¯ug{a wjldY ie,is◊' 

taldnoaOlrKfhka miqj f.jqKq udi wol ld,h mjq,a yhl fkdtfiakï 

fjkia iud.ï ixialD;Ska yhca mej;s Ndú;djka zm%dfoaYSh wdr®:sl ixjr®Okh 

u.ska ck;dj iún,.ekaùfuka YS% ,xldj fi!Nd.Hh lrd /f.khduZ hk 

tlu f;audj hgf;a tlai;a jQ tlu mjq,l" iud.ul ls%hdld¯;ajhla njg 

m˙jr®;kh ls¯fï ld,m˘Éf√ohla jYfhka ie,lsh yelsh' taldnoaOlrKfhka 

miqj .; ù we;s ld,h udi wola muKla jk neúka uQ,H ldr®h idOkh 

w.ehSu fyda miq.sh jr®I iu`. jr®Okh iei`°u cÖ fÅdye√h' tfia jqj;a wm 

nexl=jg remsh,a ì,shk Xcc •dNhca ädP{d √˙Éo yelsù we;s nj;a wfma 

;ekam;= moku remsh,a ì,shk 37'90la nj;a wm úiska ,nd° we;s Kh remsh,a 

ì,shk 37'1la nj;a 2010 foieïnr® 31 jk úg wfma wc%sh uh (NPL) wkqmd;h 

2'9]la nj;a b;d i;=áka ±kqï °ug leue;af;uq' my; nisk fmd,S wkqmd; 

fya;=fjka fmd,S wd∞hï wvqùfï wNsfhda.hg uqyqK °ug wm nexl=jg is≥úh' 

tfy;a tu.ska jk mdvqj fmd,S úhoï wvqlr mshjd.ksñka wjidk jYfhka 

,dN jr®Okh lr.ekSug;a wmg yelshdj ,eì◊' 
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f.˛.sh cd• m˘;fç~fhaµ nexl=fõ l<ukdld¯;ajfha yd wOHlaI uKav,fha 

wjOdkh fhduq jQ m%Odk lreK jQfha jr®I .Kkdjla mqrd m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok 

nexl= yhl meä‹ úúO fufyhqï" ls%hdudr®. yd m%;sm;a;s cd;sl uÜgñka 

nexl=fõ ls%hdld¯;ajh i`oyd WÑ; talSh m%dfhda.sl m%;sm;a;s yd ls%hdudr®. 

ud,djla njg m˙jr®;kh lr.ekSuhs' fuhg nexl=fõ ixúOdkh m%;sjHqy.; 

ls¯u" ixúOdk jHqyfha úúO uÜgïj, ldr®hhka yd j.lSï kej; ksr®jpkh 

ls¯u" kj fiajl uKav, n`ojd.ekSu yd mqqyqKq ls¯u" kj ±laug wkqj ls%hdls¯ug 

ldr®h uKav,h ±kqj;a ls¯u yd n,.ekaùj" nexl=j iy tys ishÆ fiajdjka 

fjkqfjka kj wf,úlrK Wmdh udr®. ieliSu" mj;sk YdLd kej; kdulrKh 

yd YdLd cd,h jHdma; ls¯u wd° ls%hdudr®. fuhg we;=<;a úh' 

fuu ld, iSudj iïnkaOfhka ;j;a jeo.;a is≥ùï jkqfha cd;sl uÜgfï 

nexl=jla jYfhka wjYH f;dr;=re ;dlaIK wjYH;djka ms<sn`o iïmQr®K 

wOHhkhla is≥ls¯u;a kj nexl= ls%hdld¯;ajh i`oyd wjYH wfkl=;a ;;ajhka 

y`≥kd .ekSu;ah' ;j;a ,o idr®:l;ajhla jkafka y`≥kajd fok ,o nexl=fõ kj 

wf,úlrK Wmdhudr®.hkag;a ,dxPkh jYfhka fi!Nd.Hfha ixfla;hla 

jYfhka ie,fck jd,ïmq˙h f;dard .ekSug;a f;aud mdGh jYfhka f;dard.kq 

,enQ wfma b,lal md˙fNda.slhd wu;k yd ldr®h uKav,h iu`. inef`ok 

zfomhska ke.sák YS% ,dxlslhkagZ hkakg;a b;d iqNjd° m%;spdr ysñùuhs' {ä~ 

kj YdLdjka jvd;a kùk yd ld,Sk myiqlï j,ska iukaú; j ilia ls¯u yd   

tu.ska md˙fNda.slhdg;a jvd;a myiq jkakdjQ;a ldr®h uKav,fha Woafhda.hg 

fya;=jkakd jQ;a ldr®hd,Sh jgmsgdjla ksr®udKh √˙É" ta w;ru W;=r yd          

kef.kysr m<d;aj, nexl= YdLd jHdma;sh ms<sn`o YlH;d wOHhkhla is≥ √˙É{a 

fM cd•fhaµ ÎÉcâ.{ ye√˝h/ tfuka u há;, myiqlï" udkj iïm;a 

ixjr®Okh yd jHdmd˙l ls%hdld¯;ajhka ixjr®Okh fjkqfjka is≥ fcfrk 

wdfhdack yryd nexl=fõ fiajd uÜgu yd M,∞hS;dj jr®Okh ls¯u ;=<ska 

nexl=fõ ;r.ld¯;ajh jr®Okh ls¯u fcfrys iqúfYaIS wjOdkh iys; b†˙ 

wjqre≥ myla i`oyd jk iuia; wdh{Îc ie,iqu iïmQr®K ls¯u o fï ld,h 

;=< ° ksudlrk ,o ;j;a jeo.;a ldr®hhls'

miqìu ieliSfï ldr®hhkaf.ka jeä m%udKhla iïmQr®K lr we;s fyhska o 

wdrïNfha° u;=jk .egÆ fndfyduhla úi`° we;s fyhska o 2011 ° jr®Okfha 

ch.%dyS udj; fj; wj;Sr®K ùug nexl=j iQ∞kñka issáhs' iajlSh m%Odk b,lal 

Éq•sc md˙fNda.slhka jk .%dóh ck;dj iún, .kajñka iqΩ yd uOH m˙udK 

nexl=lrKfha kshuqjd njg m;aùfï .uka udr®.hg nexl=j wj;Sr®K ù isáhs' 

jvd;a ldr®hlaIu md˙fNda.sl fiajdjlg yd nexl= fufyhqï M,odhS;djfha 

jr®Okhg o bjy,a jk m˙† 250lg wêl YdLd cd,h iïnkaO lrñka kùk 

talSh nexl= fiajdjla ia:dms; ls¯u 2011 jr®Ih ;=< ° m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok nexl=j 
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;=< is≥jk jeo.;a fjkialï w;˙ka m%£dÅ{É tlla jkq we;' ;j;a äe~.{a 

ie,iqula jkafka nexl=j ls%hd;aul ù isák iEu k.rhlu$.ulu kj lr®udka; 

˝iaica f~mhsÅa Åe.S iso˛É ÉÛsÅa âf´ ixäP£Åho iDlqäÉ iyNd.s˛fM kj 

jevigykhs' ta iu`. u fï jk úg m%dfoaYSh ixjr®Ok nexl=j m%fõY ù fkdue;s 

kj fj<`ofmd<la jk W;=r yd kef.kysr m<d;a lrd jHdma; ùug o wfmalaIs;h' 

tfiau M,∞hS;ajh yd fiajdlrK wxYfhka nexl=fõ ldr®h idOkh w.ehSu yd 

wëlaIKh ms◊i kj ks¯laIK ie,iqula o ls%hd;aul ls¯ug kshñ;h' 

úúO fCIa{%hÅays w;a±lSï /ila we;s m<mqre≥ jD;a;Shfõ°kaf.ka iukaú; 

wOHlaI uKav,h fj;ska nexl=fõ l<ukdld¯;aj lKavdhug ,efnk 

uÛfmkaùu b;d m%fhdackj;ah' nexl=j i;= jákd j;alula jYfhka ie,lsh 

yels Tjqka fj;ska ,efnk u.fmkaùu nexl=j mQr®K jYfhka iajlSh ldr®hhka 

wdrïN lrñka jr®Ok udj;g msúfik 2011 jr®Ih ;=< ° wmg úYd, Yla;shla 

jkq we;' fuu ≥Ialr m˙jr®;k ld, iSudj ;=< ° ,nd≥ka wk.s iyfhda.h yd 

lemùu fjkqfjka uf.a ifydaor wOHlaI uKav, idudcslhka fj; uf.a 

yDohdx.u ia;=;sh m%ldY ls¯ug leue;af;ñ' tfiau wOHlaI uKav,h ;=< 

NdKavd.drh ksfhdackh lrñka nexl=j ia:dms; ls¯u iïnkaOfhka wk.s 

u.fmkaùula ,nd≥ka iqcd;d l=fr® uy;añhg o udf.a úfYaI ia;=;sh mqolrñ' 

tfiau m˙jr®;k ld,iSudj ;=< idudkHêld¯$m%Odk úOdhl ks,Od¯ fj; 

Wm˙u iyfhda.hla ,nd≥ka wfma m<mqre≥ l<ukdld¯;aj lKavdhu yd olaI 

fiajl uKav,h fj;~ wOHlaI uKav,h fjkqfjka uf.a iqúfYaI ia;=;sh yd 

m%idoh m<ls¯ug leue;af;ñ'

fuu ld, m˙Éf√oh ;=< ° uqo,a weu;sjrhd jYfhka w;s.re ckdêm;s;=ud 

úiska o" YS% ,xld uy nexl=fõ wêm;s;=ud úiska o NdKavd.drfha f,alï{=Éd 

we;=Ω NdKavd.drfha yd uqo,a wud;HxYfha ks,Od¯ka fj;ska o ,enqKq u.

fmkaùu wmg b;d úYd, Yla;shla yd Wmldrhla úh' tfiau wfma ú.Kljreka 

jYfhka lghq;= lrk wr®kiaÜ wekaG hka.a iud.ug;a jr®I wjidk ú.Kk 

lghq;= is≥l< ú.Kldêm;sjrhdg;a uf.a ia;=;sh mqolrñ' wjika jYfhka wfma 

nexl=j yd ine`≥Kq ishÆ jHdmd˙l mdr®Yjhkag iy yjq,alrejkag;a úfYaIfhka 

u wm †fkka †k Yla;su;aùu i`oyd wmg w;S;fha isg Yla;sh ,ndfok wfma 

jákd .uqfokqlrejka fj; uf.a iqúfYaI ia;=;sh yd m%Kduh mqo câÅ w{â 

wfma Çexc=äo iy ÉqÜÉy{a Y%S •xcdäoÉ wÜ{a hq.hca W‡√˙Éo wm iÉÛ 

w{aäe•a Çe~.ÅaÅd f•i [äqÅao ÉÉ wdâd£Åh câÒ/ 

cdklS l=remamq

iNdm;sksh
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jiytupd; tho;j;Jr; nra;jp

gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fp ,dJ Kjy; vl;L khjq;fSf;fhd nraw;ghLfSf;Fhpa 

Mz;L mwpf;ifapid rkHg;gpg;gjpy; ehd; kpFe;j jpUg;jp milfpd;Nwd;. 2010 Nk khjk; 

njhlf;fk; 2010 brk;gu; tiuapyhd vl;L khjq;fs; ,e;ehl;bd; fpuhkpa mgptpUj;jp 

tq;fpj; Jiw tuyhw;wpy; kpfTk; xg;gw;wnjhd;whFk;. mjhtJ 1985 Mk;; Mz;bypUe;J 

njhopw;gl;L te;jpUe;j khtl;l kl;lj;jpyhd 177 tq;fpfSk>; 13 Mz;LfSf;F Nkyhf 

nraw;ghl;bypUe;J te;j khfhz kl;lj;jpyhd MW tq;fpfSk; xd;wpizf;fg;gl;L xU 

Njrpa tq;fpahf xOq;fikf;fg;gl;lJ. ,e;j xd;wpizg;ghdJ 250 f;Fk; mjpfkhd 

fpisfisAk;> 2000 jpw;Fk; mjpfkhd gzpahsiuAk; kl;Lkd;wp ehl;bd; fpuhkpa 

mgptpUj;jp tq;fpj; Jiwapd; mbkl;lj;jth; rhh;e;j 25 f;Fk; mjpfkhd Mz;Lfhy 

mDgtq;fisAk; $l xd;Wjpul;Lk; tha;g;Gfis je;Js;sJ.

	

	Nkw;gb xd;wpdzg;ghdJ> 30 Mz;Lfhy Nkhjy; epiyikfs; KbTw;wijg; 

gpd;njhlh;e;J ehl;bd; epjp epiyikfs; KbTw;wijg; gpd;njhlHe;J ehl;bd; epjp 

epyikg;ghLfs; XU mD$ykhd kl;lj;jpid va;jpAs;sjhy; Vw;gl;l ];jpuepiyia 

Fwpj;Jf;fhl;LtjhdJk; Jhpj mgptpUj;jpg; ghijapy; ehl;bid Kd;ndLj;Jr; 

nry;yf;$ba Nghpdg; nghUshjhu #oy; xd;wpYk; Vw;gl;bUg;gjhdJ fhyj;jpw;Nfw;w 

nraw;ghlhFk;. tq;fpapd; xd;wpizg;ghdJ epjprhh; cWjpepiyia xd;W jpul;lTk;> 

tYkpf;f cl;fl;likg;G njhopy;El;guPjpapy; Kd;Ndw;wk; fz;Ls;s thbf;ifahsh; 

Nrit, kdpjts mgptpUj;jp> re;ijg;gLj;jy; (rl;l tpjpfSld; rhpghh;f;fTk;) 

vd;gdtw;iw tYg;gLj;Jk; tifapyhd KiwaPLfSf;F ,l;Lr; nry;yTk; vd;Nw 

Kd;ndLf;fg;gl;lJ.

,izg;igj; njhlh;e;J te;j vl;L khjq;fSk; MW ntt;NtWgl;l $l;bizf; 

fyhr;rhuq;fisAk; xU njhiyNehf;Fldhd xU FOkj;jpy; xd;W jpul;Lk; Kaw;rpf;fhf 

nrytplg;gl;ljhFk;. mj;njhiy Nehf;fhdJ> ,yq;ifia nry;tepiyia Nehf;fp 

Kd;efh;j;jf; $ba gpuhe;jpa mgptpUj;jpia Vw;gLj;Jk; tpjj;jpy; kf;fis tYT+l;Lk; 

Nehf;fk; nfhz;ljhFk;. xd;wpizg;gpypUe;J 3 fhyhz;LfshtJ KbTwhj epiyapy; 

epjprhh; nraw;ghLfis kjpg;gPL nra;tNjh md;wp ,jw;F Kd;ida Mz;LfSld; 

xg;gpl;L tsh;r;rpia Nehf;FjNyh jpUg;jp jukhl;lhJ. vt;thwhapDk;> tq;fp &gh 1.5 

gpy;ypad; ,yhgk; (thpf;F Kd;jpa) <l;Lk; epiyia mile;Js;sJld; mjd; gz 

itg;Gf;fs; &gh 37.90 gpy;ypad;fshfTk; nfhL fld; tY &gh 37.1 gpy;ypad;fshfTk; 

2010 brk;gh; 31Mk; jpfjpapy; NPL tpfpjk; 2.9% MfTk; NgzpapUg;gJ kfpo;r;rpf;Fhpa 

tplakhFk;. vkJ tq;fp tl;b tPjj;jpd; Fiwg;gpdhy; rthy;fis vjph;nfhz;lJ. mjdhy; 

Vw;gl;l tl;b tUthapd; tPo;r;rpahdJ tl;b njhlh;ghd nrytpdq;fspd; Fiwtpdhy; 

<Lnra;ag;gl Kbe;jJld; mjdhy; ,yhgj;jpy; mjpfhpg;Gk; Vw;glyhapw;W. tq;fpapd; 

nfhLfld; gl;baypy; 30% tptrhaf; fld;fSk;> 18% fhy;eil> kPd;gpb> ifj;njhopy; 

fld;fshfTk; ,Uf;Fk; epiy vkJ tq;fpahdJ jpl;ltl;lkhd Fwpapyf;FfisNa 

ikag;gLj;jp nraw;gLfpd;wJ vd;gij ep&gpf;Fk; tplakhfpd;wJ. ,JNt mJ jd; 

gzpapyf;fpid ntw;wpfukhf Kd;ndLf;fpwJ vd;gij ngUikAld; mwptpg;gjhFk;.
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Kjy; 8 khjq;fspd; nraw;ghl;Lf; fhyg;gLjpapy; tq;fpapd; gzpg;ghsh; rigapdJk; 

Kfhikj;Jtj;jpdJk; ftdpg;Gf;Fhpa tplakhf ,Ue;jJ. fle;j tUlq;fspy; 

6 khfhz kl;lj;J tq;fpfs; gpd;gw;wp te;j nfhs;iffs; kw;Wk; nraw;ghLfs; 

njhlh;ghd eilKiwfs; ahtw;iwAk; xNu xU nrad;Kiwr; rhj;jpaKs;sjhfTk; 

kpfTk; nghUj;jkhdjhfTk; xd;Wjpul;LtjhfNt ,Ue;jJ. ,J tq;fpiaj; Njrpa 

kl;lj;jpy; R%fkhf nraw;gl itg;gjw;F toptFf;Fk;. ,g;gzpahdJ> epWtdj;jpd; 

fl;likg;Gf;fis kPs mikj;jy;> epWtdf; fl;likg;gpd; gy;NtW kl;lr; nraw;ghLfs;> 

gzpfs; vd;gtw;iw kPs; tbtikj;jy;> Gjpjhfg; gzpahsh;fis Ml;Nrh;j;jYk;> 

gapw;Wtpj;jYk;> Gjpa njhiyNehf;fpw;F mikthf gzpahsiuj; jpirKfg; 

gLj;jy;> gzpapyf;F kw;Wk; $l;bid mikg;Gf;fspd; fyhr;rhuk;> tq;fpapd; tzpf 

milahsj;ijAk; mjd; cw;gj;jpfs; midj;ijAk; kPs Fwpj;jikj;jy;> elg;gpYs;s 

fpis tiyaikg;gpd; tzpfr; rpd;dj;ij kPs mikj;jYk; tphpthf;fYk; vd;gtw;iw 

cs;slf;FtjhFk;.

,f; fhyg; gFjpapDs; nty;yg;gl;bUe;j ghhpa rpy iky; fw;fshtd Njrpa 

tq;fpnahd;wpd; elg;gpYs;s jfty; njhopEl;gj; Njitfis gFg;gha;T nra;tjw;nfd 

xU system study apid G+uzg;gLj;jpaikAk;> Gjpa tq;fpapy; mbg;gilj; Njitfis 

Nfhhpf;ifg;gLj;jpaikAkhFk;. NkYk; xU ntw;wpahf tq;fpapd; Gjpa tzpfr; 

rpd;dj;jpw;F fpilj;Js;s rhjfkhd gpujpgypg;Gk; mjw;Fg; nghUj;jkhd xU ,yl;rpid 

Njh;e;njLf;fg;gl;lJkhFk;. tyk;Ghp nry;tr; nrOikia vLj;Jf;fhl;LtjhFk;. 

njgapd; efpl;bd = yhq;fpfapd;l vDk; nrhy;yLf;F tq;fpapd; gzpg;ghsUf;Fk; 

,yf;Ff; Fwpf;fg;gl;l thbf;ifahsUf;Fk; fUj;jpirit Vw;gLj;jp nraw;glj;                   

J}z;LtjhFk;. 

NkYk;> mjpetPdkhditAk; rkfhy trjpfs; mikag;ngw;wdTkhd Gjpa 

fpisfspd; Njhw;wk; gzpg;ghsUf;F kl;Lkd;wp thbf;ifahsUf;Fk; NkYk; 

nrsfhpak; epiwe;j njhopy;rhh; Gwr;#oiy vjph;ghh;f;Fk;gb nra;jJ. kw;WnkhU 

jpUg;G Kidahf tlf;Ff; fpof;Fg; gFjpfSf;F tphpthf;fk; nra;tjw;fhd rhj;jpa 

ts Ma;T KbT nra;ag;gl;likiaf; nfhs;syhk;. ,e; eltbf;iffs; 2011Mk; 

Mz;by; eilKiwg;gLj;jglTs;sd. mj;Jld;> Nritj; juq;fisAk; cl;fl;likg;G> 

kdpjts mgptpUj;jp> th;j;jfr; nrad;Kiwfs; vd;gtw;wpy; KjyPL nra;tjd; %yk; 

cl;gj;jpj; jpwidAk; Nkk;gLj;Jtjd; %yk; epue;jukhd Nghl;b epiyia Kd;Ndw;Wk; 

tifapyhd 5 Mz;L $l;Lj;jpl;lj;jpd; G+h;j;jpAk; xU iky;fy;yhFk;. ngUksTf;F 

gpd;Gy Vw;ghLfs; KbTw;w epiyAk;> $Wfsha; ,Ue;jtw;wpid xd;whf ,izj;JtpLk; 

gzpfs; Xa;e;Jtpl;l epiyAk; vk;ik 2011,y; jlq;fy;fs;fle;J Kd;NdWk; epiyf;F 

,lkspj;Js;sd. tq;fpapd; Kfhikj;Jt mzpahdJ gpugy njhopy;rhh; epGzh;fis 

nfhz;l gzpg;ghsh; rigapdhy; topelhj;jg;gLfpd;wJ. gy;NtW Jiwrhh;e;j 

mDgtq;fisAk; ngw;wpUg;gth;fshd ,th;fNs xU nrhj;jhf tpsq;Ffpd;wdh;. xU 

KOikahd nraw;ghl;L tUlkhf ,Uf;fg;NghFk; vjph;tUk; Mz;bw;F ,JNt jf;f 

topaikj;Jf; nfhLf;Fk;.

	

	vjph;tUk; Mz;by; kpfTk; Fwpg;gplj;jf;f xU khw;wkhf tpsq;fg;NghtJ ahnjdpy; 

tq;fpapay; njhlh;ghd Kd;$l;ba mbg;gilj; jPh;Tj; jpl;lj;jpd; mKyhf;fkhFk;. 
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tq;fpapd; 260 fpisfisAk; ,izj;J ,J nraw;gLj;jg;gLk;. ,jdhy; kpfTk; 

gad;epiwe;j thbf;ifahsh; NritAk; tq;fpr; nraw;ghLfspy; cw;gj;jpj; jpwd; 

mjpfhpg;Gk; tpisthfg; ngwg;gl KbAk;. ,J gzpahsuhYk;> thbf;ifahsuhYk; 

ngUksTf;F czug;gl;l Njit vd;gjhy; ,jid Jhpj mKyhf;fj;jpw;F cl;gLj;Jjy; 

midtUf;Fk; ed;ik jUtjhFk;. Vida jpl;lq;fshdit> tq;fpapd; njhopw;ghLs;s 

xt;nthU efuj;jpYk; fpuhkj;jpYk; 20 Gjpa ifj;njhopy;fis mgptpUj;jp nra;tjw;F 

Cf;Ftpg;G toq;Fk; Gjpa epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lq;fis cs;slf;FtjhFk;. mj;Jld; 

,Jtiu gad;gLj;jg;glhjpUe;j tlf;Ff; fpof;F khfhzq;fspd; re;ijfs; tiu 

gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpia tphpTgLj;JjYkhFk;. ,tw;wpw;F Nkyhf tq;fpapd; 

cw;gj;jpj; jpwd; kw;Wk; jpUg;jp epiy gw;wpa elKiw tpjpfis mstpLtjw;fhd Gjpa 

fz;fhzpg;G kw;Wk; kjpg;gPl;L Kiwikfs; mKyhf;fg;gLk;. 

tq;fp khw;wq;fis cs;thq;fp nraw;gl;l rpukq;fs; epiwe;j fhyq;fspy; risahj 

MjuitAk; xj;Jiog;igAk; ey;fpa vdJ rf gzpg;ghsh;fSf;F vdJ kdkhh;e;j 

ed;wpfis njhptpj;Jf; nfhs;fpd;Nwd;. tq;fp cUthf;fg;gl;l fhyj;jpy; jpiwNrhpapd; xU 

gpujpepjpahf gzpg;ghsh; rigapy; gq;Nfw;W gaDs;s topfhl;ly;fis toq;fpatuhd 

=kjp R[hjh $Nu mth;fSf;Fk; vdJ ed;wpfs;. mth; murJiwapy; kw;WnkhU 

nghWg;ig Vw;f Ntz;b Neh;e;J mjd; fhuzkhf 2010 etk;gh; khjk; rigapypUe;J 

tpyfpr; nrd;whh;. RDB tq;fpahdJ kpF mDgtq;fisf; nfhz;lKfhikj;Jt 

mzpapidAk;> Mw;wYk; jpwd;fSk; kpf;f Copah; Fohj;jpidAk; nfhz;Ls;sJ. 

,th;fNs tq;fp khw;wq;fis re;jpj;jpUe;j fhyg;gFjpapy; gpujk epiwNtw;W mjpfhhp/ 
nghJ Kfhikahsh; ul;zrpwp =th;j;jd kw;Wk; Kfhikj;Jt mzpapdUf;F 

cWJizahf njhopw;gl;lth;fs; Mth;. gzpg;ghsh; rigapd; rhh;gpy; gpujk mjpfhhp/ 
nghJ Kfhikahsh;> KfhikjJt mzp> gzpahsh; njhFjp MfpNahh; Nkw;gb 

fhyg;gFjpapy; Mw;wpa risahj Kaw;rpfSf;Fk; mh;g;gzpg;G kpf;f NritfSf;Fk; 

guhl;Lfis njhptpf;fpd;Nwd;.

Nkw;gb fhyg; gFjpapDs; epjpaikr;rh; vd;w tifapy; Nkd;ik jq;fpa [dhjpgjp> 

kj;jpa tq;fp MSeh;> mjd; mYtyfh;fs;> jpiwNrhpapd; nrayhsh;> mjd; 

mYtyfh;fs;> epjpaikr;R Mfpad ngUksTf;F Mf;fKk; Cf;fKk; toq;fpapUe;jd. 

vkJ fzf;fha;thsh;fSf;Fk; ehd; ed;wp $w tpUk;Gfpd;Nwd;. Ernst and Young 
fzf;fha;T epWtdk;> fzf;fha;thsh; jpizf;fsk; Mfpad Mz;bWjp fzf;fha;tpid 

elhj;jpapUe;jd. ,Wjpahf> vkJ midj;J <Lghl;lhsh;fSk;> th;j;jfg; gq;fhspfSf;Fk; 

mth;fs; vkJ tq;fp kPJ itj;jpUf;Fk; ek;gpf;if tpRthrj;jpw;fhfTk; NkYk;> 

vk;ik nkd;NkYk; tYkpf;fth;fshf tsh;r;rpailtjw;F cjtpaJld; tq;fp Gjpa 

rfhg;jk; xd;wpw;Fs; GFtjw;F njhlh;e;Jk; jkJ Mjutpid toq;ftpUg;gth;fSkhfpa 

thbf;ifahsh;fSf;Fk; rpwg;ghd ed;wpawpjiy njhptpj;Jf; nfhs;fpd;Nwd;.

[dhfp FWg;G

jiyth;
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General Manager/CEO’s Review & Analysis.
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    t gives me great pleasure to present my review and analysis for the first Annual Report of 
the Regional Development Bank for the year 2010. The Bank was established on 1st May 2010 
under the Pradeshiya Sanwardhana Bank Act No.41 of 2008 by amalgamating the six         
Pradeshiya Sanwardhana Banks i.e. Rajarata, Kandurata, Wayamba, Sabaragamuwa, Uva and 
Ruhuna.

The idea of amalgamating the six Regional Development Bank was originated and articulated by 

Dr. P. B. Jayasundara the Secretary to the Treasury and Secretary to the Ministry of Finance and 

Planning in order to mitigate the future numerous risks that the Regional Development Banks 

may have to face when operating as individual  banks at provincial level. Further it was also 

needed  to meet the minimum capital requirement imposed by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and 

to have one state owned development bank to support the Government regional development 

programmes to upgrade the socio - economic living condition of the rural and semi urban poor.

The year 2010 closed with a happy note by reaching the before-tax-profit of Rs. 997 million in 
spite of the reduction of interest rates for loans and advances. The year under review had many 
ups and downs and was not a significant period due to amalgamation process when we had to 
devote a lot of time on formulating new rules and regulations for operational activities as six 
banks were operating in different directions. In addition, as a development bank which caters to 
the most vulnerable sector in the country and implementing Government sponsored  
subsidized loan schemes at low interest rates without much income from any other sources, had 
to depend solely on interest income. Even with these constrains we were able to achieve a        
satisfactory overall progress well over the year 2009 when the six banks were operating                   
individually.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
The Bank recorded an operational profit of Rs. 1,590 million while receiving a total income of       
Rs. 6.4 billion. Although the total income was less than in 2009, the final profit was higher. The 
operational expenses were higher than 2009 mainly due to the increase of staff salaries by 2.5%. 
With the establishment of our head office in Colombo, administration and establishment                
expenses also increased considerably. 

The operational expenses which include personnel, premises and other establishment  
expenses were Rs. 2.5 billion including the provisions made for bad and doubtful loans, of which 
a sum of Rs. 1.75 billion was personnel cost which accounts for 70% of the total  
operational costs. The Bank paid a sum of Rs. 594 million as value added tax for the year  
under review.

The total assets of the Bank has increased from Rs. 39 billion to Rs. 47 billion during the year 
which is a 20% increase over and above the previous year. The Bank was able to maintain the 
financial ratios such as liquidity, capital adequacy, NPL and others at a satisfactory level during 
the year.

I
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DEPOSIT MOBILIZATION   
The Bank increased the total deposit portfolio by a sum of Rs. 7 billion from Rs. 31. billion to        
Rs. 38 billion -   a 20% increase over the previous year. T o achieve this target the Bank  
implemented several deposit mobilization programs and attracted many new customers thereby 
increasing the customer base. However, the Bank was unable to achieve the  
budgeted targets on deposits but the growth was much higher than the industry average. 
The Bank could not introduce any new deposit instruments or products as the amalgamation  
process which started in May continued till end of the year. The Bank has planned several            
deposit programs and will introduce new attractive savings products during the year 2011. 

CREDIT PORTFOLIO    
The total credit portfolio of the Bank at the end of the year was Rs. 37 billion - an increase of 
Rs.10 billion over the previous year.  Approximately 25% of this amount has been granted for 
agriculture and development sector. The balance has been disbursed for small scale housing, 
trading and other income generating activities and micro financing. As a development bank        
focusing on the rural development sector, our loans have been given mainly to the low income 
sector in order to enable them to improve their quality of life. More than 40% of our pawning 
loans also have been taken for agriculture and other development and income  
generating activities.

There is a huge demand for credit from the rural sector but we have to manage it with our own 
funds since there are no other low cost credit lines available. Hence we have to manage our 

credit portfolio by maintaining the required liquidity levels.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY   
The Bank has been maintaining the capital adequacy and the liquidity ratios in a satisfactory 
manner during the year. The cash, short term deposits and government securities recorded a 
marginal growth whereas the loan portfolio grew by a substantial amount during the year.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROLS     
In order to maintain proper checks and balances of internal operations systems, the internal 
audit activities have been strengthened by establishing an internal audit unit in the head office. 
Before the amalgamation each and every bank had the internal audit units in their respective 
regional offices. T hese are continuing in addition to the head office unit. Regular audits are  
conducted as planned. Surprise and spot audits are also conducted when necessary. The  
audit programs are monitored by the Audit Committee appointed by the Board of Directors. 

COMPUTERIZATION PROGRAMME
Before the amalgamation took place, the six banks used different types of software for their 
banking operations. Four banks i.e. Rajarata, Kandurata, Wayamba, and Sabaragamuwa  
introduced “MicrobankerWin” for their operations. Hence the Bank is now in the process of             
introducing a new core banking solution for operations which will be implemented in 2011.
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BRANCH EXPANSION PROGRAMME  
The Bank has 253 banking outlets including fully fledged branches, savings and pawning  
centers, provincial and district offices. We did not have any branches in the Northern and  
Eastern provinces, excluding Ampara District. We are in the process of expanding our  
activities to these areas and the Central Bank of Sri Lanka has granted permission to open 
branches in these areas and 10 branches are planned to be opened during 2011. Our  
operations in the Western Province are limited with only four branches operating at present.  

We are planning to open a few more in 2011.

THE STAFF              
The Bank’s total staff strength during the year was around 2350 including permanent and  
contract basis employees, and trainees. The lack of Tamil speaking staff has affected our plans 
to expand our activities to the North and East. T herefore, expanding activities had to be  
curtailed until the recruitment of suitable staff for these areas. We consider our staff as the most 
valuable asset of the Bank. They contribute towards achieving our goals. We accept that it is 
absolutely necessary to upgrade and improve their knowledge and skills in banking activities 
continuously to provide an excellent service to our customers. We continue to provide  
comprehensive training to enable them to handle more responsibilities and to prepare them           
to face new challenges in the highly competitive banking industry. In addition to the in - house 
training provided by our senior staff, our staff follows training at the Central Bank Training  
Centre and at the Banking and Finance Institute in Sri Lanka (IBSL).

CONCLUSION
The satisfactory progress and the overall growth shown by the Bank during the year have       
heightened our expectations for a bright future. However, the performance of the different             
regions will depend mainly on the resources available in each region, dedication of the staff,  
climatic conditions, Government policies etc. Our operations in the Western Province will be 
expanded in 2011 along with the North and East branch openings which will contribute to our 
future growth where we will be able to achieve better progress. The Board of Directors and the 
top management will strive to strengthen the Bank as a strong financial organization in order to 
continue to serve and upgrade the economic level of the rural poor. The Bank will continue to rely 
on the rural masses who have been with us for the past 25 years. The Bank will maintain a strong 
relationship with its clientele and anticipate becoming the partner in their day to day life. Our  
ultimate goal will be to become the Bank for the rural farming community, small and medium 
scale entrepreneurs, traders and the self employed. In conclusion, I wish to state that the          
management and the staff of the Bank worked as a team to achieve satisfactory results during 
the year. I exceedingly appreciate their dedicated and committed service. I also take this                 
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the Chairperson and the Board of Directors for 
their guidance and support extended to me in performing my duties as the General Manager/
CEO of the Bank.

R.Siriwardhane

General Manager/CEO



20 RDB Annual Report 2010



21RDB Annual Report 2010

idudkHdêld˘$m%Odk úOdhlf.a úuPYKh iy úYaf,aIKh

m%dfoaYSh ixjPOk nexl=j msysgqjd .;jq m<uq jir wjidkfha tys m%.;sh ms<sno 

jdPIsl jdP;djg udf.a úuPYkh iy úYaf,aIKh bos˘m;a ls˘ug ,eîu b;du 

i;=gls' 1998 jifP msysgqjk ,o rcrg" jhU" l¡rg" inr.uqj" W!j iy reyqK 

hk nexl= taldnoaO fldg 2008 jifP wxl 41 ork m%dfoaYSh ixjPOk nexl= 

mÅ; u.ska fuu nexl=j 2010 uehs ui 01 jk osk isg wdrïN lrk ,os' 

fuu m%dfoaYSh ixjPOk nexl=j msysgqùfï uq,sl ixl,amh bos˘m;a  lrñka iy 

tys ishÜ lghq;=j,g Wmfoia foñka  tys ksPud;Djrhd jkafka uqo,a yd l%u 

iïmdok wud;HdxYfha f,alï yd uyd NdKavd.drfha f,alïjrhdo jk wdpdPh 

mS'î'chiqkaor uy;dhs' m%dfoaYSh jYfhka l=vd nexl= l%shd;aul ùu ;=,ska tajdfha 

uq,H Yla;sh wvqùu" ta ta m%foaYj, we;s N+f.da,Sh yd wdPòl iMm;aj, úIu;djh 

wkqj b¥˘fhaµ fuu nexl=j,g uqyqK ¥ug is„jk ishÜ wjOdkï ke;s lr cd;sl 

uÜgfï rchg wh;a ixjPOk nexl=jla msysgqùfï wjYH;djh ie,ls,a,g f.k 

fmr ;snq m%dfoaYSh nexl= 06 taldnoaO fcdg fuu nexl=j msysgqjk ,os' tfiau 

n,m;%,dNS úfYaI nexl=jla iøyd ;sìh hq;= Y%S ,xld uy nexl=fjka mkjk ,o 

wju m%d.aOk wjYH;djh iïmqPK ls˘u iøyd;a" rch u.ska l%shd;aul lrkq 

,nk úúO ixjPOk fhdackd l%u u.ska .%dóh ck;djf.a wdPòl yd iudc 

{{a{aäh kxjd,Su iøyd;a" wjYH uq,H odhl;ajh iemhSu iøyd;a hk wruqKq 

bgq lr .ekSu iøyd fuu nexl=j msysgqùfï ;j;a wruqKla úh'

uq,H fj<omf,a mej;s Kh yd ;ekam;a iøyd f.jkq ,nk yd whlrkq ,nk 

fmd,S wkqmd;hka ie,lsh hq;= wkaoulska my< .sh;a nexl=j 2010 jir ;=, Ç„ 

fmr ,dNh f,i re' ñ,shk 997 la ,nd .ksñka i;=gqodhl ;{a;ajhla ,Ûd lr 

f.k we;' 2010 jir ;=, wm nexl=jg úúO m%Yak iy .egÜ rdYshlg uqyqK 

¥ug is„úh' tfiau nexl= 06 la taldnoaO lr tla nexl=jla f,i l%shd;aul 

ls˘u iøyd wjYH uq,sl lghq;= ilia ls˘u iøyd jeämqr ld,hla lem ls˙ug 

is„jq ksid ;ekam;a /ia ls˙u iøyd w¨f;ka lsis„ lghq;a;la wdrïN ls˙ug 

;rï ld,hla fkdùh' tfiau wm nexl=fõ fiajd imhkq ,nkafka ,xldfõ uqÜ 

ck.ykfhka 70] la muK jq .%dóh ck;djg jk w;r tu wxYhg uq,H fiajd 

iemhSu b;du wjOdkï lghq;a;ls'

tfiau rdcH nexl=jla f,i rch u.ska l%shd;aul lrkq ,nk iyk fmd,S Kh 

fhdackd l%u l%shd;aul ls˙ugo wmg is„ jk ksid wmf.a wdodhï m%udKhka wvq 

jqj;a 2009 jifP m%dfoaYSh ixjPOk nexl= 06 ,nd .;a m%.;shg jvd i;=gqodhl 

m%.;shla 2010 jifP wm nexl=jg ,nd .ekSug yelsù we;'
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uQ,H m%‹å, 

fuu jir we;=,; nexl=j remsh,a ì,shk 6'4 l wdodhula ,nd we;s w;r 

Ma wkqj remsh,a ñ,shk 1590 l fufyhqï ,dNhla w;alr .ekSug yels ù 

we;' 2009 jifP ,nd we;s uqÜ wdodhug jvd 2010 jifP ,nd.;a uqÜ wdodhu 

wvqjqj;a ,dNh 2009 jirg jvd jeä ù we;' wdodhu wvqùug fya;+ ù we;af;a 

Kh i|yd whlrk ,o fmd<sh úYd, f,i wvqlsrsu ksidh' 2009 jirg jvd 

wmf.a fufyhqï úhou jeä ù we;s w;r Xhg m%Odk jYfhka fya;+ ù we;af;a 

fiajl jegqma 2'5 ] l jeäùu;a wmf.a m%Odk ldPhd,h fcd<U msysgqùu;a i|yd 

orkq ,enQ uQ•sc úhoï ksid;ah'

nexl=fù m%Odk fufyhqï úhoï jk fiajl úhoï" wdh;k yd m˘md,k úhoï 

yd fjk;a fufyhqï úhoï i|yd nexl+j remsh,a Ô,shk 2'5 jehlr we;s w;r 

wl%ñl Kh i|yd lrk ,o fjkals˙ïo Mhg we;=,;ah' fuu m%udKfha remsh,a 

Ô,shk 1'75 la jehù we;af;a fiajl úhoï i|yd jk w;r Mh nexl=fõ  iïmQPK 

˝hofuka 70] m%udKhla fT'fuu jir ;=, nexl=j remsh,a ñ,shk 594 la Ml;= 

l, w.h u; Ç„ jYfhka rchg f.jd we;'

fuu jir ;=,¥ nexl=j uqÜ j;alï m%udKh remsh,a Ô,shk 39 isg remsh,a 

Ô,shk 47 olajd Mkï 20] lska fmr jPIhg Mkï 2009 jirg jvd jPOkh 

lrf.k we;s w;r nexl=j úiska mj;ajd .;hq;= øjYS,;d wkqmd;h" m%d.aOk 

m%udK;d wkqmd;h" wl%ñl Kh wkqmd;h wd¥ m%Odk wjYH;djhka i;=gqodhl 

uÜgñka 2010 jir ;=, mj;ajd .ekSug iu;aù we;'

;ekam;= m%jPOkh 

fuu jir ;=, nexl=j ;u uqÜ ;ekam;= m%udKh remsh,a ì,shk 31 isg remsh,a 

ì,shk 38 olajd Xkï remsh,a ì,shk 07lska jPOkh lr.ekSug iu;a ù we;s 

w;r Mh m%;sY;hla f,i fmr jPIhg jvd 20] l jPOkhls' fuu jir ;=, 

nexl=j úiska ;ekam;a MalrdYS √˙fMÅa jevigyka rdYshla osh;alr we;s w;r , 

wkqj ;ekam;= iy .KqfoÅqlrejkaf.a m%udKh ie,lsh hq;= uÜgulska jPOkh 

lrf.k we;' Xfia jqj;a fuu jir i|yd wfmalaIs; b,lal ;ekam;= m%udKh 

,Ûdlr .ekSug nexl=jg yelshdj fkd,enqk;a iuia: nexl= fcaaI;%fha ;ekam;= 

jPOkh idudkH wkqmd;hg jvd by, uÜgulska wm nexl=j ;ekam;= jPOkh 

lrf.k we;' nexl=j MaldnoaO ls˘fM lghq;= jir wjidkh f;la  ls˘ug is„ 

jQ ksid kj .KqfoÅq ;ekam;= WmlrK w¨;ska y¡kajd ¥ug fkdyels jQj;a 2011 

jir i|yd nexl=j wdlPIKsh ;ekam;= l%u osh;als˘ug ie,iqï lr we;'     
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Kh l,à

2010 jir wjidkfha nexl=j úiska ,nd fok ,o uqÜ Kh j,ska msgysá fYaIh 

remsh,a ì,shk 37 la jq w;r th jir wdrïNfha ;snq fYaIh jk remsh,a ì,shk 

27" remsh,a ì,shk 10 lska jeäùuls' fufia jir ;=, uqod y˘k ,o Kh j,ska      

25 ] lg wdikak m%udKhla lDIsldPñl yd ixjPOk Kh jYfhka ,ndµ we;s 

w;r wfkla Kh ksjdi" iqÜ m˘udKfha fj<ø jHdmdr" l=vd yd uOH m˘udK 

m%udKfha äHäidhc{aä Kh" iqÜ mrsudK wdodhï Wmojk lghq;= iøyd jk 

Kh jYfhka ,nd µ we;' .%dñh wdPòlh b,lal câf.Å f.k ixjPOk 

nexl=jla f,i wm lghq;= lr we;s w;r" wmf.a Kh l<ôka 40 ] la muK 

jk rka NdKav Wlia Kh j,ska 30 ] lg jvd jeä m%udKhla ,nd µ we;af;ao 

lDIsldPñl yd fjk;a iqÜ mrsudK lPudka; yd fj<ø lghq;= iøydh'

.%dóh wdPòlh ;=,ska Kh iøyd úYd, b,a,Sula ;snqko oekg rfÜ wvq fmd,S 

Kh fhdackd l%u l%shd;aul ùfï wvqjla olakg ,efnk ksid by; b,a¨u imqrd 

¥ug kï wmf.a ;ekam;= m%udKh wm úiskau jPOkh lr.; hq;= w;r øjYS,;d 

wkqmd;h wdrlaId lr .ksñka wmf.au ;ekam;=j,ska Kh ,nd µu nexl=j is„ 

lr we;'

wNHka;r ú.Kk lghq;= iy wNHka;r md,k l%u

nexl=fõ wNHka;r fufyhqï l%shdoduhg wod, pl%f,aL Wmfoia m˘os tajd iqugj 

lrf.k hEu iøyd;a tajdfha ksjeros Ndjh wLkavj m˘laId ls˘u iøyd;a 

wNHka;r ú.Kk l%shdj,sh Yla;su;a ls˘u iøyd;a m%Odk ldPhd,fha wNHka;r 

ú.Kk tallhla msysgqjd we;' óg wu;rj taldnoaO ls˙ug fmr ta ta nexl=j, 

;snq wNHka;r ú.Kk ta whq˘kau mj;ajdf.k hEug;a wLkav wNHka;r ú.Kk 

iy miq úmrï l%shdj,sh Yla;su;a ls˙ug;a lghq;= lr we;'

ta wkqj ie,iqï lrk ,o YdLd ú.Kk iy yosis fufyhqï wjYH;djh m˘¥ is„ 

lrk w;r  tu ú.Kk jdP;d wOHlaI uKav,h úiska m;a lr we;s ú.Kk 

lñgq /iaùï fj; bosrsm;a lrkq ,efí' tu ú.Kk jdP;d tu lñgqj u.ska 

ks˙laIKh yd wOHhkh lrk w;r ta wkqj wod, jeros ksjeros ls˙ugo nrm;, 

úIudpdr is„ù ;sfí kï tajdg wjYH úkh l%shd udP. .ekSug{a tjeks foa 

bosrsfhaµ is„ fkdùug wjYh mshjr fuu.ska f.k we;'

øjYS,;d wkqmd;h iy m%d.aOk m%udK;d wkqmd;h

úYd, b,a¨ula .%dóh Kh ioyd ;snqko wmf.a Kh jPOkh remsh,a ì,shk 10 la 

jk w;r  ;ekam;= jPOkh wfmalaIs; uÜgñka is„ fkdjq  ksid wmf.a øjYS,;d 
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wkqmd;h iy m%d.aOk m%udK wkqmd;h i;=gqodhl uÜgul mj;ajd .ekSu ioyd 

wmf.a wdfhdack iøyd uqo,a m%udKj;a mrsos l<uKdlrkh lr .; hq;=h' 

ta wkqj nexl=j 2010 jir ;=, øjYS,;d wkqmd;h iy m%d.aOk m%udKd;aul 

wkqmd;h i;=gqodhl uÜgul mj;ajdf.k hdug iu;aj we;'

mrs>Kl l%shdj,sh

nexl=j taldnoaO lsrsug fmr nexl= 06 la jYfhka l%shd;aul jq wjêfha rcrg" 

jhU" l¡rg" yd inr.uqj" hk nexl= ;u fufyhqï lghq;= ioyd uhsfc%dnEkalP 

uD„ldx.h fhdodf.k ;snq w;r W!j iy reyqK ixäP£Å nexl= úiska ;ukaf.a 

fiajlhka úiska ilia lrk ,o ms<sfkd.;a" iy;sl fkdlrk ,o uD¡ldx.h 

Ndú;d lrk ,os' fcfia fjk;a nexl=j taldnoaO ls˘fuka miq ish¨ nexl= 

lghq;= ioyd fhdod.; yels fmd„ uD„ldx.hl wjYH;djh u; oekg ta iøyd 

uq,sl wOHhkhka lr iq„iq iemhqï lrejkaf.ka ñ, .Kka leøùug uq,sl 

mshjrhka wjika lr we;' ta wkqj 2011 jir ;=, fuu uD„ldx.h y¡kajd ¥ug 

wfmalaId lruq'

YdLd mqÜ,a ls˘fï lghq;=

oekg nexl=j i;=j m<d;a ldPhd," osia;%sla ldPhd," YdLd" Wcia yd b;=reï 

uOHia:dk yd fiajd uOHia:dk 253 la we;s w;r wïmdr osia;%slalh yer W;=re 

kef.kysr  m%foaYj, wmf.a YdLd cd,h jPOkh lr ke;' W;=re kef.kysr 

m%foaYfha wmf.a lghq;= jHdma; lsrsu iøyd Y%S ,xld uy nexl=fjka wkque;sh 

,nd µ we;s w;r ta wkqj 2011 jir we;=,; fuu m%foaYj, YdLd 10 la wdrïN 

ls˙ug ie,iqï lr we;' óg wu;rj niakdysr m<d; iy úfYaIfhka fcd<U 

osia;%slalh ;=, wmf.a YdLd we;af;a iSñ; m%udKhla jk w;r 2011 jifPµ 

fcd<U osia;%slalfhao YdLd lsysmhla wdrïN lsrsug wjYH lghq;= iïmdokh 

lr we;'

fiajl uKav,h

2010 jir wjidkfha wm nexl=fõ iuia: fiajl uKav,h 2350 la muK jq 

w;r th iaòr ldPhHh uKav,h" fcdka;%d;a moku u; nøjd .;a wh iy 

mqyqKqjkakka f,i nøjd .;a whf.ka iukaú; fõ' øúv NdIdj l:dlrk 

fiajl uKav,h wm nexl=j i;=j ke;sùfï wvqmdvqj ksid W;=re kef.kysr 

YdLd wdrïN ls˙ug ta wkqj ndOdjla ù we;' fcfia fj;;a bosrsfhaµ ta iøyd 

øúv NdIdj l:d l,yels fiajlhka W;=re kef.kysrg nøjd .ekSug wfmalaId 

fcfP'
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wmf.a fiajl uKav,h nexl=fõ jákdu iïm;la f,i wm i,lk w;r 

nexl=fõ wruqKq yd wfmalaId bgqlr .ekSu ioyd Tjqka Wmrsu f,i odhl;ajh 

,nd foa' tu ksid .Kqfokqlrejkag Wm˘u iy úYsIaG fiajdjla ,ndµu ioyd 

nexl= fiajlhkaf.a oekqu" l=i,;djh yd wjfndaOh jeä l,hq;= nj wm 

ksrka;rfhka ms<s.kakd w;r ta iøyd ksrka;r yd wLkav mqyqKqùï Tjqkag 

,nd µug lghq;= lr we;' b;du;a ;rÛld˙ jHdmdrhla jk nexl= fcaaI;%h ;=, 

.Kqfokqlrejkag Wm˘u fiajhla ,nd µu ;=,ska muKla wmf.a lghq;= jPOkh 

lr .; yels w;r ta ioyd fiajlhka mqyqKq lsrsu yd Tjqkaf.a oekqu jPOkh 

ls˙ug mshjr f.k we;'

fï iøyd nexl=fõ flHIaG ks,Odrska úiska" nexl=lrejkaf.a wdh;kh u.ska" Y%S 

,xld uy nexl=fõ mqyqKq úoHd,h u.ska iy fjk;a ndysr wdh;k u.ska wjYH 

mqyqKqj foaYShj iy úfoaYShj ,nd µug bosrshg;a lghq;= lsrsu iøyd mshjr 

f.k we;'

ksudj

fuu jifrys nexl=j úiska iuia;hla f,i ,nd f.k we;s i;=gqodhl m%.;sh 

wm nexl=jg meyeos,s ;sridr iy i;=gqodhl wkd.;hla we;s njg mila lr 

we;' fcfia fj;;a nexl=fõ iuia: m%.;shg odhl;ajh ,ndfok YdLd msysgqjd 

we;s m<d;aj,ska ta ta m<df;a we;s iïm;a" wdPòl l%shdldrlï" N+f.da,Sh msysàu" 

foaY.=Ksl n,mEï" rcfha m%;sm;a;s iy fiajl uKav,fha lemùu u; wmf.a 

m%.;sh r\ mj;skq we;' fcd<U osia;%slalfha iy W;=re kef.kysr m%foaYj,g;a 

wmf.a lghq;= jHdma; ls˙u ;=,ska nexl=fõ m%.;shg ie,lsh hq;= odhl;ajhla 

boßrs jirj,¥ ,nd osh yels nj wmf.a úYajdihhs'

.%dóh ck;djf.a wdPòl uÜgu kÛd isgqùu ioyd wm nexl=j Yla;su;a uq,H 

wdh;khla njg m;a ls˙ug wOHlaI uKav,h iy by< l<uKdldrs;ajh 

ksrka;rfhka lghq;= lrkq ,nk w;r jir 25l ixjPOk nexl= b;sydifha 

wm iu. iïnkaOù lghq;= l, .%dóh ck;dj fcfrys wm Wm˙u úYajdih 

;nd we;s w;r ta wkqj Tjqkaf.a tosfkod Ãú;fha fcdgialrejl= njg 

m;aùug wjYH lghq;= bosrsfha¥ is„ lr we;' wmf.a wjidk b,lalh jkqfha 

70] la muK jk wm rfÜ .%dóh f.dú ck;dj" iajhx /lshd ,dNSka" iqÜ 

mrsudKfha lPudka;lrejka" fjf<kaoka iy wfkl=;a wvq wdodhï ,dNSkaf.a 

uq,H wjYH;djhka imqrd,ñka .%dóh wdPòlfha b;=reï Åeñhdj iy b;=reï 

m,mqreoao we;slrñka Tjqkaf.a tlu nexl=j njg m;aùuhs'
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úfYaIfhka fuu jifP wm ,nd .;a i;=gqodhl m%.;sh ,nd.eksug 

l<uKdld˘{aäh iy ishÜ ldPhHh uKav,h tlu lKavdhula f,i lghq;= lsrsu 

m%Odk idOlh jq nj i;=áka ioyka lrñ' tfiau Tjqkaf.a fiajh iy odhl;ajh 

uu b;du;a wf.a fcdg i,lñ' wjidk jYfhka nexl=fõ lghq;= idP:l lr 

.ekSug;a by< m%.;shla ,nd .ekSug;a lghq;= ls˙fï¥ idudkHdêld˘jrhd 

f,i ug Wm˙u iyfhda.h" uÛfmkaùu yd Wmfoia ,nd¡ka iNdm;s;=ñh we;=Ü 

wOHlaI uKav,hg;a ia;=;s lsrsug fuh wjia:djla lr .ksñ'

wdP/ is˘äP£Å

idudkHdêldrs$m%Odk úOdhl
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nghJKfhikahsh;/ gpujk epiwNtw;W mjpfhhpapd; 
kPsha;Tk; gFg;gha;Tk;

gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpapd; 2010 Mk; Mz;bw;fhd KjyhtJ Mz;L mwpf;ifapd; 

kPsha;itAk;> gFg;gha;itAk; ehd; ngUkfpo;r;rpAld; Kd;itf;fpd;Nwd;. ,t;tq;fpahdJ 

2010 Nk khjk; 01 Mk; ehs; gpuhNjrpa rq;tHj;jd tq;fpr; rl;lk; ,y 41 ,d; 

gpufhuk; 6 gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpfshd u[ul;l> fe;Jul;l> tak;gh> rg;gpufKt> 

Cth> W`_D Mfpadtw;iw xd;wpizj;J cUthf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ. Nkw;gb 6 gpuNjr 

mgptpUj;jp tq;fpfisAk; xd;wpizf;Fk; MNyhridahdJ jpiwNrhp nrayhsh; 

fyhepjp. gP. gp. n[aRe;jutpdhYk; epjpj;jpl;lkply; mikr;rpdhYk; Kd;itf;fg;gl;L 

njspTgl tpsf;fp ciuf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ. vjph;fhyj;jpy; gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpfs; 

vjph;nfhs;sf;$ba Vuhskhd ,lh; Neh;Tfis Fiwj;Jf; nfhs;tjw;Fk;> kj;jpa 

tq;fpapdhy; tpjpj;Jiuf;fg;gl;l %yjdk; njhlh;ghd mbg;gilfis epiwTnra;Ak; 

nghUl;Lk;> murhq;fj;jpd; gpuNjr mgptpUj;jpj; jpl;lq;fis Kd;ndLf;f cjTk; 

tifapy; xNunahU gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpiaf; nfhz;bUg;gjd; Nehf;fpYk;> 

fpuhkpa kw;Wk; efh;Gwj;J miu twpa gphptpdhpd; r%f nghUshjhu epiyikfs; 

juKah;j;jTnkd;w MNyhridapd; gpufhuNk tq;fp cUthf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ.

2010 Mk; Mz;lhdJ xU kfpo;r;rpf; Fwpg;Gld; epiwT va;jpapUe;jJ. mjhtJ> fld;fs;> 

Kw;gzq;fs; kPjhd tl;bfs; Fiwf;fg;gl;l epiyapYk; thpf;F Ke;jpa ,yhgkhf 

&gh 997 kpy;ypaid tq;fp rk;ghjpf;f Kbe;jJ. kPsha;Tf;F cl;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;s ,e;j 

Mz;L gy Vw;w ,wf;fq;fisf; nfhz;bUe;jJld; xd;wpizg;Gr; nrad;Kiwfs; 

fhuzkhf xU Fwpg;gplj;jf;f Mz;lhfTk; ,Uf;ftpy;iy. ,J njhlh;ghd Gjpa 

tpjpfs; gpukhzq;fs; nraw;gl Ntz;bapUe;jd. 6 gpuNjr tq;fpfSk; 6 ntt;NtW 

jpirfspy; nraw;gl;L te;jikahy; mtw;wpd; ,af;fk; njhlh;ghd nraw;ghLfs; 

Gjpa tpjpfs; gpukhzq;fis Njitg;gLj;jpd. Nkw;$wg;gl;l tplaj;jpw;Fk; Nkyhf> 

kpfTk; ghjpg;GfSf;F cs;shf $ba ehl;bd; gphptpdh;fSf;F Nritahw;WtJld; 

kpff;Fiwe;j tl;b tPjj;jpy; murpdhy; Kd;itf;fgl;l khdpa Kiwf;fld; jpl;lq;fis 

mKy; nra;Ak; mNj Ntis tl;b tUtha; jtph;e;j NtW ve;j tif tUthAk; 

mw;w epiyapy; xU gpuNjr mgptpUj;jp tq;fpahf ,J Nrit Ghpfpd;wJ. ,t;thwhd 

kl;Lg;ghLfs; ,Ue;j epiyapYk; $l 6 tq;fpfSk; jdpj;jdpahf ,aq;fpa 2009Mk; 

Mz;bid tplTk; xl;Lnkhj;jkhf jpUg;jpfukhd Kd;Ndw;wj;jpid ehk; va;jpAs;Nshk;. 

epjprhh; ngWNgWfs;

tq;fpahdJ nkhj;j tUthahf &gh 6.4 gpy;ypad;fis ngw;w mNj Ntis ,aq;F 

yhgkhf &gh 1590 kpy;ypad;fisAk; gjpTnra;jpUe;jJ. nkhj;j tUtha; 2009Mk; 

Mz;bYk; ghh;f;f Fiwthdjhf ,Ue;j epiyapYk; ,Wjp yhgk; Kd;ida Mz;bYk; 

ghh;f;f cah;thdjhf ,Ue;jJ. gzpahsh; rk;gsq;fs; 2.5% j;jpdhy; mjpfhpf;fgl;l 

fhuzj;jpdhy; ,af;Ftjw;fhd nryTfs; fle;j Mz;bYk; ghh;f;f cah;thdjhfNt 

,Ue;jJ. nfhOk;gpy; jiyik nrayfk; njhlq;fg;gl;ljpypUe;J eph;thfr; nryTfSk;> 

epWtdr; nryTfSk; $l fzprkhd mstpw;F mjpfhpj;jd. mYtyf tshfq;fs;> 

Mszp> kw;Wk; epWtd hPjpahd nrytpdq;fs; cs;spl;l ,aq;Fepiyr; nrytpdq;fs; 

kw;Wk; mwtplKbahf; fld;fSf;fhd Vw;ghLfs; vd;gd &gh 2.5 gpy;ypad;fshFk;. 

,j; njhifapy; 70% khd &gh 1.75 gpy;ypad; MszpapdUf;fhd nrytpdkhFk;. 
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Nkw;gb Mz;by; tq;fpg; ngWkjp Nrh;thpahf &gh 594 kpy;ypad;fisr; nrYj;jpAs;sJ. 

tq;fpapd; nrhj;Jf;fspd; ngWkjp 23% jpdhy; mjpfhpj;jJld; &gh 39 gpy;ypad; 

ngWkjpapypUe;J &gh 48 gpy;ypadhf cah;e;jJ. ,t;thz;by; tq;fp jdJ epjprhh; 

tPjq;fis mjhtJ jputj; jd;ik> Kyjdg; NghJ epiy> NPL njhlh;ghd tPjq;fis 

kpfTk; rpwe;j kl;lq;fspy; itj;Jg; Ngzp te;Js;sJ.

gz itg;Gf;fspd; mirT

	tq;fp jdJ nkhj;jg; gz itg;ig 7 gpy;ypad; &ghf;fshy; mjhtJ> fle;j Mz;bd; 

&gh 31 gpy;ypadpypUe;J &gh 38 gpy;ypaDf;F mjpfhpf;f Kbe;jpUf;fpd;wJ. ,J 

fle;j Mz;bYk; ghh;f;f 20% mjpfhpg;gjhFk;. ,e;j ,yf;fpid miltjw;F tq;fp 

gy gzitg;G Cf;Ftpg;Gj; jpl;lq;fis mKy; nra;J gy Gjpa thbf;ifahsh;fis 

mzpjpul;baJ. vt;thwhapDk;> tq;fp mjd; cj;Njr gzitg;G ,yf;fpid 

ntd;Wtpltpy;iy. Mdhy; tq;fp fz;Ls;s tsh;r;rpahdJ ,j;Jiwrhh;e;j ruhrhp 

tsh;r;rpia tpQ;rp epd;fpd;wJ. Nk khjj;jpy; tq;fpfspd; xd;wpizg;G eltbf;iffs; 

Muk;gpj;J Mz;L KOtjw;Fk; njhlh;e;j fhuzj;jhy; gz itg;GfSf;fhd Gjpa 

jpl;lq;fs; vjidAk; mwptpj;jpUf;ftpy;iy. MapDk;> 2011 Mk; Mz;by; gy Gjpa 

gz itg;Gj; jpl;lq;fisAk; fth;r;rpfukhd Gjpa Nrkpg;Gj; jpl;lq;fisAk; mwpKfk; 

nra;tjw;F jpl;lkpl;Ls;sJ. 

KjyPl;Lf; fld; gl;bay;fs;

Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; thf;fpy; KjyPl;Lf; fld;fspd; nkhj;jj; njhif &gh 38 gpy;ypadhf 

,Ue;jJ. ,J ,t;thz;by; &gh 10 gpy;ypadhf mjpfhpg;ghFk;. ,j;njhifapd; Rkhh; 

25% tptrhak; kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jp Nehf;fq;fSf;nfd toq;fg;gl;lJ. kPjkhd njhif 

rpW tPlikg;Gj; jpl;lq;fs;> th;j;jfk; kw;Wk; tUtha; gpwg;gpf;Fk; nraw;jpl;lq;fs;> 

Ez;epjpaply; jpl;lq;fSf;nfd toq;fg;gl;lJ. xU mgptpUj;jp tq;fp vd;w tifapy;> 

fpuhkpa mgptpUj;jpapy; ftdj;ijf; Ftpj;jpUf;Fk; epiyapy;> Fiwe;j tUkhdk; 

ngWk; kf;fSf;Nf fld;fis toq;fp mth;fspd; tho;epiyfis Nkk;gLj;j cjtpaJ. 

ehk; toq;Fk; mlFf; fld;fspy; 40% jpw;Fk; Nkyhd njhif tptrhak; kw;Wk; 

mgptpUj;jp> tUtha; gpwg;gpf;Fk; Nehf;fq;fSf;fhfNt toq;fg;gl;ld. fpuhkpa 

kf;fs; gphptpdhplkpUe;J ngUksT Nfhhpf;iffs; flDf;fhf Kd;itf;fg;gLfpd;wd. 

NtW Fiwe;jsT rYiffSldhd fld;trjpfs; mw;wepiyapy; ehk; vkJ nrhe;j 

epjptrjpfisNa ,jw;nfdg; gad;gLj;Jfpd;Nwhk;. ,jdhy;> vkJ KjyPl;Lf; fld; 

gl;baiy Kfhikj;Jtk; nra;tjw;F mtrpakhd msTf;F jputj;jd;ikia 

NgzptUfpd;Nwhk;.

jputj;jd;ikAk; %yjdg; NghJepiyAk;

Fwpj;j Mz;Lg; gFjpapy; tq;fp> %yjd NghJ epiyiaAk; jputj;jd;ik tPjj;ijAk; 

jpUg;jpfukhd xU tifapy; Ngzpte;Js;sJ. fhR> FWfpa fhy gz itg;Gf;fs;> 

murhq;fg; gpizfs; vd;gtw;wpd; tplaj;jpy; vy;iy tsh;r;rp Vw;gl;bUe;jJ. mNj 

Ntis KjyPl;Lf; fld;fs; fzprkhd xU mstpdhy; tsh;r;rp fz;bUe;jJ.
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cs;sff; fzf;fha;Tk; fl;Lg;ghLfSk;

epWtdj;jpd; cs;sfr; nraw;ghl;L Kiwikfspd; kPJ fl;Lg;ghLfisg; NgZk; tifapy; 

jiyik mYtyfj;jpy; cs;sff; fzf;fha;Tg; gphpT xd;wpid cUthf;Ftjd; %yk; 

cs;sff; fzf;fha;Tr; nraw;ghLfs; tYg;gLj;jg;gl;ld. xd;wpizg;Gf;F Kd;dh; gpuNjr 

tq;fp xt;nthd;Wk; jj;jkf;fhd cs;sff; fzf;fha;T myFfisf; nfhz;bUe;jd. 

,d;W jiyik mYtyfj;jpd; gphpTk; Kd;ida jdpj;jdpg; gphpTfSk; ,aq;Ffpd;wd. 

fzf;fha;Tj; jpl;lnkhd;wpd; gpufhuk; rPuhd fzf;fha;Tfs; elhj;jg;gLfpd;wd. 

mtrpaNkw;gLk; NghJ jpBh; fzf;fha;TfSk; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLfpd;wd. gzpg;ghsh; 

rigapdhy; epakpf;fg;gLk; fzf;fha;Tf; FOtpdhy; fzf;fha;T epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lq;fs; 

fz;fhzpf;fg;gLk;. fzf;fha;T mwpf;iffs; fye;JiuahlYf;F cl;gLj;jg;gLtJld; 

gzpahsh; jug;gpy; eilngw;wpUf;ff;$ba jtWfs;> gpiofs; rPh;nra;ag;gLtjw;nfd 

epthuz eltbf;iffs; Nkw;nfhs;sg;gLk;.

fzzp kakhf;fy; jpl;lk;

xUq;fpizg;G Nkw;nfhs;sg;gl;ljw;F Kd;dh; xt;nthU tq;fpAk; (6 tq;fpfs;) 

jj;jkJ tq;fpapay; eltbf;iffis ntt;NtW tif nkd;nghUl;fisg; gad;gLj;jp 

Nkw;nfhz;ld. u[ul;l> fe;Jul;l> tak;g> rg;gpufKt Mfpa 4 tq;fpfSk; Micrbankerwin 
nkd;nghUl;fisg; gad;gLj;jpd. Cth kw;Wk; W`_d Mfpa 2 tq;fpfSk; 

jj;jkJ gzpahsuhy; tpUj;jp nra;ag;gl;L ghPl;rpf;fg;gl;L Vw;Wf;nfhs;sg;gl;lJkhd 

nkd;nghUl;fisg; gad;gLj;jpd. ,jdhy; vkJ Mis KiwikahdJ Vida 

tq;fpfspd; KiwikfSf;F epfuhd juj;jpy; ,y;iy. vdNt tq;fpahdJ> tq;fp 

rhh; NjitfSf;F KOikahd jPh;Tfis toq;fty;y xU mbg;gilia mwpKfk; 

nra;Ak; Kaw;rpfspy; <Lgl;Ls;sJ. ,k;Kiw 2011 Mk; Mz;by; mKyhfTs;sJ. 

fpisfs; tphpthf;fy; jpl;lk;

KO mjpfhuKila fpisfs;> Nrkpg;G kw;Wk; mlF epiyaq;fs;> khfhz> 

khtl;l mYtyfq;fs; vd;gd cl;gl tq;fp 253 epiyaq;fisf; nfhz;Ls;sJ. 

mk;ghiw khtl;le; jtph;e;j tlf;Ff; fpof;F khfhzq;fspy; vkf;F fpisffs; 

,Uf;ftpy;iy. ,jdhy; ,g;gFjpfspd; fpisfis Muk;gpg;gjw;fhd Maj;jq;fspy; 

ehk; <Lgl;bUf;fpd;Nwhk;. 10 fpisfisj; jpwg;gjw;fhd mDkjpia kj;jpa tq;fp 

vkf;F toq;fpAs;sJ. ,jd; gpufhuk; 10 fpisfs; 2011Mk; Mz;by; jpwf;fg;glTs;sd. 

Nky; khfhzj;jpy; vkf;F 4 fpisfNsAs;sd. ,jdhy; vkJ Nritfs; mq;F 

kl;Lg;gLj;jg;gl;l mstpNyNa eilngWfpd;wd. vdNt NkYk; rpy fpisfis ehk; 

mq;F jpwf;f cj;Njrpj;Js;Nshk;. 

gzpahsh; Fohk;

epue;ju> xg;ge;j mbg;gil> gapw;rpahsh;fs; cl;gl tq;fpapd; nkhj;j Mszpapdh; 

2350 Ngh;fshth;. NghJkhd vz;zpf;ifahd jkpo; NgRk; mYtyfh;fs; ,d;ik 

tlf;F> fpof;F tphpthf;fj;jpw;F ngUk; jilahfTs;sJ. vdNt nghUj;jkhd 

Mszpapdh; Ml;Nrh;f;fg;gLk; tiu ,g;gpuNjrq;fspy; tphpthf;fy; jpl;lq;fis 

kl;Lg;gLj;jp itf;fNtz;b Vw;gl;Ls;sJ. vkJ ,Wjp ,yf;Ffis ntd;nwLg;gjpy; 
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gq;fspf;ff;$bath;fs; gzpahsNu vd;gjhy; ehk; mth;fis ngWkjp kpf;f 

nrhj;Jf;fshfNt fUJfpd;Nwhk;. ,jdhy; mth;fspd; mwpTepiyiaAk; jpwd;fisAk; 

njhlh;r;rpahd Kiwapy; Kd;Ndw;Wtjw;Fk;> juKah;j;Jtjw;Fk;> thbf;ifahsh;fSf;F 

Nkk;gl;l Nritia toq;f Ntz;bajd; mtrpak; fhuzkhf> Ntz;ba Kaw;rpfs; 

vLj;jy; Kw;wpYk; mtrpakhdjhFk;. MfNt nghWg;Gf;fis Vw;fTk;> tq;fpj; 

Jiwapy; epyTk; cah;e;jsT Nghl;b epiyikfs; fhuzkhf vof;$ba rthy;fis 

vjph;nfhs;sTk; ehk; KOik tha;e;j gapw;rpia njhlh;r;rpahf toq;Ffpd;Nwhk;. ,J 

njhlh;gpy; ehk; tq;fp kl;lj;jpNyNa rpNu\;l mjpfhhpfshy; toq;fg;gLk; gapw;rpfSf;F 

Nkyhf kj;jpa tq;fpapd; gzpahsh; gapw;rp epiyak; kw;Wk; tq;fpapay;> epjpapay; 

fy;Y}hp %ykhfTk; gapw;rpfis toq;Ffpd;Nwhk;.

KbTiu

Nkw;gb Mz;by; jpUg;jpfukhd Kd;Ndw;wj;ijAk;> xl;Lnkhj;j tsh;r;rpiaAk; 

tq;fpapdhy; Vw;gLj;j Kbe;jik gpufhrkhd vjph;fhyk; xd;W gw;wpa vjph;ghh;g;Gf;fis 

vk;Ks; tsh;j;Js;sJ. MapDk; tq;fpapd; midj;Jg; gpuNjrq;fspdJk; 

nraw;ghLfshdit gpujhdkhf me;je;jg; gpuNjrj;jpy; ngwf;$bajhfTs;s  

tsq;fs;> gzpahshpd; mh;g;gzpg;G> fhyepiyfs;> murnfhs;iffs; vd;gtw;wpNyNa 

jq;fpAs;sd. Nky;khfhzj;jpy; vkJ nraw;ghLfspy; tphpthf;fk; kw;Wk; tlf;fpYk; 

fpof;fpYk; fpisfspd; jpwg;G vd;gd 2011 Mk; Mz;by; eilngwTs;sd. ,tw;wpdhy; 

vjph;fhy tpisTfs; rpwg;ghf miktJld; 2010Mk; Mz;bidtplTk; mjpf rpwg;ghd 

Kd;Ndw;wj;jpid milaTk; KbAk;. Gzpg;ghsh; rigAk; Kfhikj;JtKk; fpuhkg;Gw 

twpa kf;fSf;F nghUshjhu Nkk;ghL fpl;lNtz;Lk; vd;gjw;fhf tq;fpia xU 

rpwe;j epjp epWtdkhf tYTwr; nra;Ak; gpuaj;jdj;jpy; <Lgl;Ls;sdh;. fle;j 25 

Mz;Lfshf tq;fpAld; ifNfhh;j;J epd;w fpuhkpa kf;fisNa tq;fp njhlh;e;Jk; 

ek;gpr; nraw;gLk;.  

             

tq;fp jdJ thbf;ifahsUld; tYthd cwTfis Ngzpf; nfhs;tJld; mth;fspd; 

md;whl tho;f;ifapy; gq;fhspfshfTk; vjph;ghh;f;fpd;wJ. vkJ ,Wjpapyf;fhf 

,Ug;gJ fpuhkg; gFjpfs;> tptrha r%fj;jpdh;> rpwpa kw;Wk; eLj;ju njhopy; 

Kaw;rpahsh;fs;> th;j;jfh;fs;> Ranjhopypy; <LgLgth;fs; Mfpa gphptpdUf;fhd 

tq;fpahf ehk; tpsq;f Ntz;Lk; vd;gJjhd;. ,Wjpahff; kPsha;Tk; gFg;gha;Tk; 

vd;W ehd; vOJk; ,g;gFjpapy;> fle;j Mz;by; rpwe;j jpUg;jp jUk; ngWNgWfis 

ntd;nwLf;f ty;y mzpahf Kfhikj;JtKk; gzpahsh; FohKk; tpsq;fpd 

vd;gij njhptpf;f tpisfpd;Nwd;. mth;fspd; cWjpg;ghl;Lldhd mh;g;gzpg;G kpf;f 

Nritia ehd; nghpJk; ghuhl;Lfpd;Nwd;. ,r;re;jh;g;gj;jpy; jiyth; mth;fSf;Fk;> 

gzpg;ghsh; rigapdUf;Fk; mth;fs; toq;fp tUk; topfhl;ly;fs;> MjuT> xj;Jiog;G 

vd;gtw;wpw;nfd> nghJ Kfhikahsh;> gpujk epiwNtw;W mjpfhhp vd;w tifapy; 

vdJ kdkhh;e;j ed;wpfisj; njhptpj;Jf;nfhs;SfpNwd;. 

Mh;. rpwpth;j;jd 

nghJ Kfhikahsh;/ gpujk epiwNtw;W mjpfhhp
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2010 at a Glance
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Bank ceremonially opened
The Regional Development Bank (RDB) started operations in July 2010 at the 

head office located in the commercial capital, Colombo to facilitate the  

conduct of the Bank’s operations in an efficient manner. It was also more  

convenient to cordinate the activities of a wide network of over 250 service 

centres through a centralised operation. The 12th floor of the Access building at 

Union Place was selected to house the head office.

The Bank was ceremonially opened by Dr P B Jayasundera, Secretary,  

to the Ministry of Finance & Planning in the presence of a distinguished 

gathering. 
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Orientation towards the New Vision
Realising that the human resources are the most valuable asset, the Bank 

took up the challenge of moulding a work force towards a common goal in 

keeping with the Bank’s new vision. The staff who had diverse objectives 

and directions when they were serving in six different banks earlier, were 

directed to concentrate towards one common objective. 

An extensive orientation programme was planned and conducted among 

the staff in August to create awareness of the forward march of the Bank. 

With the accent on explaining the new Vision, Mission and Values of the 

Bank, the staff was given a thorough training during the orientation 

programme. The need for everyone to be a partner in the Bank’s effort 

to help the government in its endeavour towards building a prosperous 

nation was stressed.  The responsibilities towards the Bank’s stakeholders 

were also highlighted.
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It was emphasized that commitment and dedication were essential 

ingredients in serving the customers, while a team effort was most 

essential for the Bank to progress towards achieving its goals. 

 

The entire staff and the management team from the Chairperson  

downwards participated in six programmes held at different  venues in 

the six regions - Rajarata, Ruhuna,Wayamba, Uva, Kandurata and  

Sabaragamuwa.It was a novel experience for the staff who got a clear 

understanding of the objectives of the Bank in a bid to create a 

prosperous Sri Lanka through regional development.

Corporate Plan finalised
Further to this, during the last few months of the year, a five-year  

Corporate Plan was unveiled to direct the Bank’s future activities. The five 

year plan initiated under the guidance of the Chairperson, is woven round 

the theme “Strengthening the people through regional development to 

build a prosperous Sri Lanka”. 

Time frames have been set to achieve the targets set out in the plan and 

the cooperation of the staff at all levels has been sought. They have been 

given responsibilities and deadlines to meet the targets with the objective 

of fulfilling RDB’s future goals. 

Financial Relief to Soya Bean Farmers 
RDB continues to help the government in its plans to develop the  

agriculture sector. With this objective the bank was able to come to the 

rescue of soy bean farmers who were forced to destroy their bumper 

harvest due to the inability to sell at a profit. Upon the request of His  

Excellency the President RDB offered credit facilities to the Paddy  

Marketing Board to purchase this harvest. Farmers in Kekirawa,  

Horowpathana, Gonapathirawa, Thirappane and other major cities in  

Anuradhapura were helped by the disbursed facilities amounting to 

Rs.150 Million through the Paddy Marketing Board to stock their  

produce.

Relief measures to paddy cultivators
The country’s main suppliers of its national food, paddy cultivators too 

faced a similar debacle when over production of paddy moved market 

prices lower. Such situations create severe burdens on farmers but again 

RDB disbursed facilities amounting to Rs.250 Million to affected farmers 

through the Paddy Marketing Board helping those farmers not only to 

overcome the debacle but to earn handsome profits.
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Annual Sports Meet  
The combined annual sports meet of the six regional  banks has been 

a practice at RDB over the years. This year as well the tradition was 

continued when the sports meet was held in September at Ratnapura 

with the distinguished patronage of Hon. Minister of Public Administra-

tion Mr. John Seneviratne. This was a memorable day for all participants 

and no doubt strengthened friendships and formed new bonds among 

the workforce. 

Gift of love “Senehase Thilinaya”
To coincide with the World Children’s Day, in October 2010 RDB 

launched a special gift voucher campaign to all families of new born 

babies to set a sound footing to their lives. An attractive interest rate was 

also offered for the accounts opened with these gift vouchers branded 

as “Senehase Thilinaya” to enable them to benefit from an attractive 

lump sum when they reach the age of 18 years.

RDB’s Contribution to make Sri Lanka “The 
Miracle of Asia”
In November 2010 RDB launched a new deposit certificate branded 

‘Arscharyaye Pathuma’ which invited Sri Lankan’s from all walks of life to 

become partners towards making Sri Lanka the ‘Wonder of Asia’. 
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The uniqueness of this novel savings account is that the investors 

pledge themselves to become a partner in the massive develop-

ment programs taking place in the country towards the said objective. 

The product was launched to coincide with the second inauguration 

ceremony of His Excellency the President Mahinda Rajapaksa.  The 

bank pays attractive interest rates to these investors as an appreciation 

towards their contributions to nation building. 

‘Yasa Isuru’ Savings Draw
A rewards scheme for depositors of ‘Yasa Isuru’ Savings Certificates 

was conducted in the Sabaragamuwa region and at the grand draw a 

lucky winner from Milleniya Branch, Kalutara collected a Micro car worth  

Rs 1.4 million. The winner, Mr. P A Punyaratne had been a customer of 

the Milleniya branch from its’ inception 25 years ago. Over the years, 

the winner had collected Yasa Isuru certificates to the tune of  

Rs 15,000. Certificates valued at Rs 100 was bought by many  

customers who found it a reasonable amount to put away as savings. 

Two hundred more customers of the Sabaragamuwa region won  

consolation prizes worth Rs 10,000 each.
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Widening the network
With a view to make the Bank more accessible for customers, 

a planned programme of establishing branches and expanding the  

network is underway. 

Having identified the requirements in different areas, the Bank took 

steps to select suitable locations for the branches. 

New branches in Peradeniya, Kirindiwela and Kirimatiyane Extension  

offices were opened. Meanwhile Rattota and Santha Ana Pura branches 

were re-located to more convenient locations for our customers.



38 RDB Annual Report 2010

The first branch to be opened after the establishment of  RDB was at 
Kirindiwela. Since the existing branches looked different from each other 
due to the fact they were operating separately, the need of a franchised 
model for the new look of RDB was a necessity. 

The Raththota branch  was exclusively designed as a model branch to 
meet this requirement. The front appearance was given a face lift so that 
any one could identify their friendly bank with ease. The internal  
environment was created for the convenience of the banks internal as 
well as external customers. The 253rd branch of the RDB network was 
ceremonially opened at Peradeniya in November 2010.
   
The regional office and the city branch office in Anuradhapura were
shifted to two different premises on 15 November 2010, providing better 
facilities to staff and customers.

Mobilising deposits

RDB staff voluntarily participated in special promotional campaigns to
mobilise deposits in the six different regions in October to December
2010. A highlight of the programme was the total commitment and
co-operation extended by the trade unions to make it a success.

The objective of the two-month programme was to mobilise deposits
and get more customers in the process achieving the targets set for the
financial year 2010-11. The effort was highly successful and the Bank 
plans to utilise the savings collected during these campaigns to assist 
local entrepreneurs in their efforts to contribute towards the country’s 
development efforts.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Investment/ Savings Accounts

Daily Collection System ‘Dorin Dora’

The Regional development bank’s flagship product/service is the daily collection system 

branded as “dorin dora”. This system operates through a dedicated set of agents who 

on daily basis visit the business premises and the residences in the command areas of 

our branches. It provides great relief and convenience to the target group and saves their 

opportunity cost. as otherwise they would have to sacrifice their valuable time  visiting the 

branch again and again for their banking transactions The dorin dora product / service is 

not only limited to collecting deposits, but has helped the target clientele to obtain loans 

for development purposes, service this loan account and pay the instalments promptly at 

their convenience. This unique product /service helped many small scale entrepreneurs 

and individuals to build up healthy balances over a period of time without much effort and 

hassle. Thus it has been able to fulfil the vision of the bank of  

“empowering Sri Lankans”.

Adult Savings Accounts

Competitive interest rates are offered for adult savings accounts at Regional Development       	

    Bank. Any person above the age of 18 could open an adult savings account with the   	

       bank with an initial deposit of Rs 500. The bank through its large network of branches 	

         especially in the rural areas of the country has made it possible for the common  

           villager as well to have access to an array of banking facilities by becoming an adult 	

              savings account holder. The expansion of the reach through our branches in rural     	

           areas helps a significant number of rural folk towards banking and reduces the large

portion of non banking community in the country.
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 Children’s Savings Account

Children are the future of the country. Hence Regional Development Banks children's  

savings accounts are designed with the objective of building the deposit balances as 

they grow. A special interest rate was offered to children’s savings accounts to meet this 

objective. In October 2010, bank introduced a gift voucher system to encourage parents 

to open savings accounts for their beloved kids. This resulted in getting more children to 

bank with RDB. 

Senior Citizens Account

RDB recognizing the contribution made by the senior citizens to the society and 

the country at large during their life over long periods, offers special interest rates 

to senior citizens fixed deposit accounts. This made an immense impact on the 

interest income of the senior citizens who had invested their retirement benefits 

to earn a regular monthly income. Most of our senior citizens praised the bank 

for offering these special interest rates during an era where the deposit interest 

rates dropped drastically.
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Vishrama

RDB Vishrama account is designed with the objective of providing a hassle 

free regular income after retirement. The uniqueness of this account is that the 

investor has a wide range of options to make the investments over a period of 

time. They could select to make investment daily or Monthly whilst seasonal 

income earners too have access to this investment scheme. This has been a 

tremendous boost for a peaceful retirement life to our core customers segments 

of farmers, fishermen, and small industrialists etc., who have never been able to 

get in to any pension scheme.

‘Dayada’ Savings Account

‘Dayada’ is an unique savings account offered by RDB for those who wish to 

invest money either in a lump sum or in small regular sums at their convenience 

over long period of time until they get married. At the time of their marriage the 

dayada account holder gets the capital, interest and a special bonus interest. 

A very special interest rate is offered to these accounts to make the investment 

more fruitful. 



42 RDB Annual Report 2010

Fixed Deposits.

RDB Fixed deposits have been very popular among its target group due to 

competitive rates and the confidence that our customers have placed in us for 

the last 25 years. The fixed deposits are available at RDB  for the periods of 1, 

2, 3 and 6 months as well as for 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5 years. Since the inception RDB 

was able to provide very attractive interest rates out of all the banks. Special 

interest rates are offered for fixed deposits with tenures of 1 year and more.

Arshcharyaye Pathuma Deposit Certificates

In the month of October, RDB introduced unique deposit certificates for periods 

ranging from 1 to 5 years, with face values of Rs.500. Rs.1000 and Rs.5000 at 

very competitive interest rates in the financial market.  As in the past the bank 

paved way even for the small investor to invest money at a higher rate with 

a shared vision of making Sri Lanka the ‘wonder of Asia’. The uniqueness of 

this product was the pledge that customer shares with the bank to become a 

partner to nations development programmes by making the investment even in 

a small way to achieve the ulterior objective of making Sri Lanka "The wonder of 

Asia". A noble commitment, indeed.
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Our loans are specially designed to fulfil the vision of empowering Sri Lankans. An array of small scale 

loans are on offer to priority sectors such as agriculture, fisheries, small scale industries etc., which are  

usually not available in many financial institutions or not much encouraged by many.

Loans

Start up Loans for Self Employment

A number of startup loans are available at RDB under different brand names for 

different sectors ‘SEPI ’(Self Employment Promotion Innovative loan scheme) 

loans are offered to entrepreneurs who have undergone professional training in  

a specific field and wish to start up a business project in that line. These loans 

are provided at attractive interest rates and on soft securities.

S.M.E Sector Specialized Loans
 
A country with a clear vision and a commitment to move forward developing

village economies, need to make available micro financing to the priority sectors. 

Regional Development Bank has always been assisting small and medium scale 

enterprises.  Such as small scale industrialists, entrepreneurs, self employment 

sectors etc., these facilities are available on soft securities and at concessional 

interest rates, convenient repayment periods, and most of all with grace periods 

until the project realizes regular incomes. The facility requests are mostly  

evaluated on the viability of the project and the ability of the applicant to repay.
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Agriculture

RDB is one of the very few institutions in the country that provides loans to 

farmers for paddy and soya bean cultivation and to stock their produce until the 

market prices become favorable in a short time span of 270 days. RDB took the 

leadership in 2010 to assist soya bean farmers to stock soya beans when the 

prices drastically dropped due to heavy production. These loans too are offered 

at concessional interest rates and soft securities.

“Saubhagya’
 

These loans are offered solely for self employment projects with attractive 

 interest rates and on soft securities.
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Fisheries Industry Loans

Loans to the fisheries sector are available at concessional interest rates and 

soft securities to purchase fishing equipment and for community development. 

Further loan facilities are also offered to purchase multi-day fisheries boats and 

other small boats. RDB also offers special loans for inland fish farming and orna-

mental fish breeding.

Housing Loans

RDB offers special housing loan schemes for the lower income  

sectors at attractive interest rates. These loans are granted with repayment 

periods up to 15 years. Housing loans are offered for purposes such as outright 

purchase of a house, to buy a land to build a house, renovations and to add 

new units to an existing house.
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“ISURU”

Isuru is a loan scheme designed for poverty alleviation. Small groups  

comprising of five to seven women earning incomes lower than the poverty 

level could apply for these loans for income generating projects. These  

facilities are also offered at concessionary interest rates and on soft securities.

Transport Sector Loans

RDB is also one of the very few banks that provide loans to meet transport  

requirements of rural sector by providing loans to purchase vehicles. These loan 

facilities are availabe at low interest rates and soft securities. 
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Techno Based industries

Having identified the future demand for fuel and the increasing costs of fuel,  

RDB offers loans for solar power generation, and small scale 

power generation projects at convenient terms and lower interest rates.

Commercial and Business purpose Loans

RDB’s commercial and business Loans are offered for retail trading and stock  

purchasing purposes. The uniqueness of these facilities is that most of these 

facilities are processed through the banks collection agents who make visits from 

door to door. The target clientele also has the luxury of servicing these facilities 

through these agents saving their valuable time to come to the bank regularly.
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Janaki Kuruppu is the first Chairperson of the 

Regional Development Bank appointed in May,                  

2010. Currently, she also holds the positions of   

Advisor on Food Security, at the Office of the 

President of Sri Lanka, Chairperson of Mother 

Sri Lanka Trust, Advisor to the Sri Lanka       

Federation of Industrial Associations and a Director 

at the Colombo Dockyard PLC.  Most recently she 

was appointed as a member of the 8 member 

international steering committee on Rural  

Development and Agriculture Finance project  

“AgriFin” of the World Bank and the Bill Gates 

Foundation.  Previously to this, she was a 

Director of Commercial Bank PLC, Sathosa, Cargills 

Ceylon PLC and Managing Director of The Nielsen           

Company.

With over 20 years of experience in both the private 

and public sectors both in the USA and Sri Lanka,   

Ms Kuruppu has had an illustrious career in a variety 

of industries. Before joining the public sector in  

January 2008, she set up her own research and 

consultancy firm which she later merged with the 

global leader in Market Research, The Nielsen  

Company by inviting them to set up in Sri Lanka. 

She has also worked as a business and marketing 

consultant to many local and international  

companies as well as a Social and Economic 

Development consultant to donor agencies.  

In addition to this, her private  sector experience also 

includes Strategic Planning & Business Development 

for the Cargills Group, where she was on the boards 

of three of its’ subsidiaries for almost 4 years.

  

After completing almost 17 years in the Private 

sector, she then undertook an Advisory role in the 

Public Sector in order to make a direct contribution 

to nation building. In addition to her role in  

development banking, she is currently 

spearheading some special projects which include 

strategic interventions into Food Security and Cost 

of Living Management, private sector links and 

partnerships, patriotism and positive image building 

on Sri Lanka. 

She holds a M.A. in Applied Statistics from the 

University of Missouri, USA and a B.Sc in 

Mathematics jointly from the University of Colombo 

and University of Missouri and currently reading for a 

PhD at the University of Colombo. Among her other 

accolades are the All American Scholar Award  

and the US Achievement Academy Award for 

outstanding performance in the USA and The Most 

Outstanding Sri Lankan Award 2010 in recognition of 

the community service done by the Mother Sri Lanka 

movement.

JANAKI KURUPPU

CHAIRPERSON

Board of Directors
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Mr. P. V. Pathirana was appointed as a director of the Board of Regional Development  

Bank in October 2010. He holds a B. Sc. (Business Administration) Degree and is a  

Fellow  Member of the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka (FIBSL). He also holds a Diploma in 

Bank Management from the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka.  Mr. Pathirana is an 

experienced banker who has risen from the level of a Branch Manager to GM / CEO post 

covering a wide area of banking practices at Peoples Bank. He has specialized in Micro 

Financing and Development Banking. His 39 years experience at Peoples Bank elevated 

him to the post of GM / CEO of Peoples Bank Sri Lanka. Mr. Pathirana also served as a 

Director of People’s Merchant Bank, Credit Information Bureau, Institute of Bankers of 

Sri Lanka, Agricultural and Agrarian Insurance Board, People’s Travels and People’s  

Leasing Finance (PLC)  Company. Currently, Mr. Pathirana is the Senior  

Advisor to Ministry of Finance on SME Finance.

Mrs. Cooray was appointed as an Ex- officio member of the Board of Directors of  

Regional Development Bank in May 2010. She held the position as a director at RDB until 

her appointment as the secretary to the Ministry of Ports & Highways in November 2010.         

Mrs. Cooray is a senior public servant with over 31 years experience at the Ministry of  

Finance and Planning. She was the Director General of the Department of External  

Resources and was the Deputy Secretary to the Treasury at Ministry of Finance &  

Planning. Mrs. Cooray possesses a BA (Hons) degree & Business Philosophy Degree from 

the University of Colombo. She has also obtained a Masters Degree in Economic  

Development from the Institute of Social Studies from Hague (Netherlands). She has had 

overseas training in the fields of Macro Economic & Structural Policies, Leadership & 

Change in the private sector, International Loans Negotiation, Monitoring & Evaluation of 

Projects & Programs. Mrs. Cooray has served as a Director at Sri Lanka Electricity 

Company Pvt Ltd, Sri Lanka Tourist Board and Board of Investment, National Development 

Bank, Securities & Exchange Commission, Insurance Board of Sri Lanka and  

Thomas De La Rue Lanka Currency and Security Print (Pvt) Ltd. 

Mr. Dhammika Perera joined the Board of Regional Development Bank in May 2010, at its 

inception. At present Mr. Dammika Perera serves as Senior Deputy General Manager of 

National Savings Bank. He joined the NSB in 1986 and since then he has held many key  

positions of the Bank such as Deputy Chief Internal Auditor, Chief Internal Auditor, 

Assistant General Manager (Internal Audit)  and Deputy General Manager (Audit & Vigilance). 

At present he oversees the Audit, Investigations, IT, Credit, Administration, and Security 

of the Bank. Mr. Dhammika Perera is a Certified Information Systems Auditor and was the 

President of Information Systems Audit and Control Association, Sri Lanka Chapter. He is 

also a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors, USA; and serves as the Board of 

Governor of the Sri Lanka Chapter of Institute of Internal Auditors.He holds a B.Com 

Special Degree and Diploma in Bank Management and is a finalist of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants, Sri Lanka. He delivers presentations at various Seminars organized 

by the ISACA Sri Lanka Chapter and Institute of Chartered Accountants on 

internal audit and information systems audit related subjects and fraud investigations. 

P.V. PATHIRANA

SUJATHA COORAY

S.D.N. PERERA

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR
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Mrs. Chandani Werapitiya was appointed to the directorate of Regional Development Bank 

in May 2010. Presently, Mrs. Werapitiya is the Deputy General Manager (Corporate & 

International	Banking	Division)	of	People’s	Bank	and	she	is	in	charge	of	the	Corporate	and	

International	Banking	Division	including	the	offshore	Banking	Unit.	She	joined		

People’s Bank in June 1987 as a Management Trainee and counts nearly 23 years of 

experience	in	the	fi	elds	of	Customer	Services,	SME/Project	Lending,	Branch	operations,	

Corporate  Banking and Credit Management. She holds a B.Sc. in Business 

Administration (Hons) with a Second Class Upper and M.Sc. (Management) from the 

University	of	Sri	Jayawardenepura	and	has	professional	banking	qualifi	cation-AIB	from	

Institute	of	Bankers	Sri	Lanka.	Mrs.	Werapitiya	is	also	a	Director	of	Sri	Lanka	Handicrafts	

Board.      

Ms.	Nalani	has	been	a	Non	Executive	Nominee	Director	of	Regional	Development	

Bank	since	May	2010.		Ms.	Nalani	is	the	Senior	Deputy	General	Manager	(Corporate	&	

offshore	Banking)	of	the	Bank	of	Ceylon	and	counts	over	35	years	of	diversifi	ed	banking	

experience.    She has been the head of Corporate and Offshore Banking operations unit 

for	nearly	05	years,	contributing	signifi	cantly	for	expansion	of	corporate	banking	activities.	

She was the head of the Recovery Unit of Bank of Ceylon for 3 ½ years, before taking 

over	the	current	position.	She	is	also	a	Non	Executive	nominee	Director	of	Merchant	

Bank of Sri Lanka PLC   and also serves as an Alternate Director to the Boards of Credit 

Information	Bureau,	Institute	of	Bankers	of	Sri	Lanka,	BoC		Property	Development	&	

Management (Pvt) Ltd. and BOC Travels (Private) Limited. She also represents the Bank 

of	Ceylon	at	the	Board	of	Srilankan	Airlines.She	was	the	co-winner	of	the	“Zonta	Award	

for Excellence” in banking category in the year 2009. She is the Senior Vice President 

of	the	Association	of	Professional	Bankers	of	Sri	Lanka.		Ms.	Nalani	holds	a	Bachelor	of	

Arts Degree in Economics and Bachelor of Philosophy in Economics, from University of 

Colombo.	She	is	also	a	Fellow	Member	of	the	Institute	of	Bankers	of	Sri	Lanka.

CHANDANI WERAPITIYA 

W.A. NALANI

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

Miss. Maduri Munasinghe joined RDB on 25th October 2010, as the Secretary to the Board / Legal 

offi	cer.	She	is	an	Attorney-at-Law	with	over	7	years	of	experience.	She	served	as	a	Legal	offi	cer	

at Suntel Limited and L. B. Finance PLC and has gained experience in the areas of Commercial Law, 

Company Secretarial, Corporate Law, Labour Law, Credit and Recoveries. She is currently reading 

for	a	Masters	of	Arts	Degree	in	International	Relations	at	the	University	of	Colombo. 

MADURI MUNASINGHE 
Secretary to the Board / Legal Offi cer
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Mr. Hellarawe joined RDB in May 2010 as the Deputy General Manager Human Resources, 
Administration and operations. Prior to this appointment he was the General Manager of 
Kandurata Development Bank. Mr. Hellarawae counts 38 years of Professional Banking  
experience covering all banking practices in various executive grades. He holds a B.com
Degree from the University of Peradeniya Sri Lanka.

Mr. W.A. Sirisena is a Professional Banker who counts more than 38 years of experience  
covering all areas in the banking field, in various Executive Grades. He is the former Senior  
Assistant General Manger of the Bank of Ceylon and former President of the BOC Staff 
Officers Association during 1993 & 1994 period.  He graduated in 1967 from the University of 
Ceylon Peradeniya.  After retirement from the Bank of Ceylon on 14th December 2003, he 
became the General Manager of Wayamba Development Bank and presently performing 
duties as the Deputy General Manager Finance, Planning  & Internal Audit at RDB. 

Mr. Siriwardena joined the Rajarata Development Bank as its first 
General Manager / CEO in 1998. After the amalgamation of the six 
provincial banks, he was appointed as the General Manager/CEO 
of the Regional Development Bank with effect from 1st May 2010. 
He commenced his banking carrier with Bank of Ceylon in 1976 and 
subsequently joined Hatton National bank and served for a period of 
12 years. In 1990 he joined the Sri Lanka Export Development Board 
and there after the National Development Trust Fund and Pubic Bank 
Malaysia. He counts over 34 years of service in the banking industry 
in various capacities specialized in development banking. He is a 
B.Sc (Business Management) graduate from Sri Jayawardenepura 
University and holds a post graduate diploma in regional  

development from the University of Colombo. He is also an 
associate member of the institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka.   

H.M.K.B.HELLARAWE  D.G.M

W.A. SIRISENA  D.G.M  

R. SIRIWARDENA  General Manager / CEO
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Mr.W.S.Hewawasam joined RDB in August 2010, as the Assistant General Manager Human 
Resources, Administration and Operations. Prior to this appointment, he was the AGM HR and 
Administration at Sabaragamuwa Development Bank. Mr. Hewawasam counts over 24 years of 
experience in Banking sector at Management Level. He holds a  Bachelor of Arts  Degree  
specialized in Economics from the University of Sri Jayawardenepura and also holds an  
intermediate diploma from the institute of bankers of Sri Lanka.

W.S.HEWAWASAM  A.G.M

Mr. Sarath Chandra Fernando joined RDB on 1st September 2010, as the Regional General 
Manager Business Development and Marketing. He counts over 32 years of experience in 
banking of which 20 years are in marketing and business development at two leading  
commercial banks. He is a fellow member of three leading professional Institutions, the  
Institute of Bankers Sri Lanka (IBSL), Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing (SLIM) and Australian 
Sales and Marketing Institute, Australia. He was conferred the Certified Professional Marketer 
status by the Asia Pacific Marketing Federation (APMF) and Practicing Marketer status from 
SLIM. He holds an MBA from University of Sri Jayawardenepura, and has diploma in bank  
management from IBSL and a diploma in marketing from SLIM. In 2007, he took over the  
presidency of Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing on honorary basis, and from a loss situation in 
the previous year, transformed the institution to record the highest ever profits in its history  
during his tenure as the president. He was instrumental in taking marketing in to villages and 
also making SLIM as a premier professional body in the region. In 2006, he was appointed as 
the honorary secretary general of the Asia Pacific Marketing Federation, Sarath Chandra  
Fernando was the first Sri Lankan to be appointed to this prestigious position. He was in the 
working committee of the World Marketing Association and currently holds the post of  
governor for SLIM at Asian Marketing Federation (AMF). He delivers presentations at World 
Marketing Conferences.

SARATH CHANDRA FERNANDO  A.G.M

Mr. Ariyaratne served as the General Manager of Sabaragamuwa Development Bank (SDB) 
since January 1999. Prior to joining SDB, he was at Bank of Ceylon for 37 years in various  
capacities. His last post was serving as the Senior Area Manager of Kalutara District. After retiring 
from BOC he worked at the private sector as the General Manager of the Elco Group  
of Companies primarily handling printing and packaging. In the year 2007 Sabaragamuwa  
Development Bank was ranked 2nd in Mix Market Report. As a result of this ranking United 
Nations Capital Development Fund selected the SDB to undertake feasibility studies in  
Cambodia and the Maldives. He led two teams to these countries to examine the present position 
and future potential of micro financing. He also led a team from SDB on a study tour to  
Bangladesh at the invitation of the Grameen Bank of Bangladesh. Mr. Ariyaratne was also a 
member of the team of General Managers on a visit to Philippines and Indonesia on a study tour 
based on micro financing at the invitation of the Apex Bodies of MFI in those countries. He took 
the initiative in the year 2000, after negotiations with GTZ-FAO to introduce the Micro-Banker 
(MBwin) system to the Sabaragamuwa Development Bank. Mr. Ariyaratne joined the Regional 
Development Bank in the year 2010. He is currently the Deputy General Manager Credit Recovery 
and IT. He is an Associate of the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka.

A. B. ARIYARATHNA  D.G.M
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Mr.I.J. Wijesekera joined RDB in May 2010, as the Assistant General Manager Credit & 
Recovery. Prior to this appointment he was the AGM Business Promotion and Operations 
at Sabaragamuwa Development Bank. Mr. Wijesekera counts over 25 years of experience in 
various Banking practices. He holds a B.com Degree from the University of Sri 
Jayawardenepura. Mr. Wijesekera also holds an Intermediate Diploma in banking from  
Institute of Bankers Sri Lanka.

I.J. WIJESEKERA  A.G.M

Mr. S.A.A.U.R.K. Sinhalagoda was promoted as Assistant General Manager Finance &  
Planning in August 2010. Prior to this appointment he was the AGM Finance & Marketing at 
Wayamba Development Bank. Mr. Sinhalagoda counts over 24 years of experience in various 
Banking practices. He graduated in 1982 with a B.Com (special) from the University of Kela-
niya, and also holds an intermediate diploma from the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka.

Ms. Manojika Herath has more than 12 years Auditing experience holding positions in the  
financial sector of which 5 years in the Banking sector in the capacity of Chief Internal Auditor,  
6 years in the capacity of Audit Manager of Chartered Accountancy firms and one year in the  
Garment Sector as the Chief Accountant. She is an Associate member of the Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, and Fellow member of the Association of the Accounting 
Technicians of Sri Lanka. Further she holds a Diploma in Banking and Finance from the  
Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka and a Business Administration Degree, specialized in Finance 
from the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. She is currently reading for a MBA at the University 
of Wayamba.

S.A.A.U.R.K.  SINHALAGODA  A.G.M

MANOJIKA HERATH 
Chief Internal Auditor
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SOUTHERN PROVINCE  

MR. K.P. DAHANAYAKA

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER
B.Com University of Ruhuna.
Intermediate Banking Diploma Examination 
Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka
Post Graduate Diploma in Management  
Rajarata University

WESTERN PROVINCE

MR. A.H.M.M.B. JAYASINGHE

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER,
Bachelor of Business Administration, University 
of Sri Jayewardenepura.
Post Graduate Diploma in Management 
University of wayamba
Post Graduate Diploma in Regional 
Development NIBM and RVB Netherland
Post Graduate Executive Diploma in Bank 
Management. Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka

NORTH WESTERN REGION  

MR. U.B. SEMASINGHE

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER,
B.Com (Special) 
University of Colombo
Intermediate Examination Institute of Bankers 
of Sri Lanka

SABARAGAMUWA PROVINCE 
MR. C.L. PIHILLANDA

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER,
B.Com University of Kelaniya.
Post Graduate Diploma in Management 
University of Peradeniya.
Intermediate Examination Institute of Bankers 
of Sri Lanka

CENTRAL PROVINCE

MR. W.G. JAYANTHA PREMADASA 

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER 
B.Com (Speical) University of 
Sri Jayewardenepura. 
Higher National Diploma in Commerce
A.M.P.M.A. (UK)

NORTH CENTRAL PROVINCE 
MR. D.M. SENARATHNA BANDARA

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER,
B.Com (Special)  
University of Sri Jayewardenepura.

UVA PROVINCE 

MR. DICKMAN SILVA 

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGER,  
B.Sc Business Administration  
University of Jayawardenepura.
AIB Sri Lanka.

REGIONAL GENERAL MANAGERS
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Managing risks is one of the fundamental functions in a bank which helps the 
management to proceed towards its ultimate goals without any catastrophic 
dilemmas. The identification of early signals of probable predicaments and  
taking appropriate measures to mitigate the numerous risks of banking  
business ensures the stability and the strength of a bank. RDB being one  
of the foremost development banks that nurture the sons of soil by augmenting 
the financial needs of the poor, face the following risks in operations that have 
been well managed with recurrent monitoring and prudent decision making.

• Credit Risk
• Liquidity Risk
• Interest Risk
• Operational Risk
• Portfolio Risk
• Compliance Risk.

The board of directors having considered the existence and the growth of 
the bank to face any volatile factors in the internal and external environments, 
appointed following committees to assess, manage and to take appropriate 
actions to mitigate integrated risks to the bank on a regular basis. 

1. Assets and Liability Committee.
2. Audit Committee.

CREDIT RISK.   
The banks credit portfolio is mainly focused on development activities such as 
micro finance, small scale trading businesses, Small and Medium Enterprises 
and the agriculture sector. In borne risk is almost available in all these  
sectors. Hence the credit risks have to be managed with close monitoring, 
proper guidance and strict credit discipline. The credit risk begins from the time 
the applications are evaluated. Therefore the bank has introduced following  
measures to mitigate the risks involved in credit. 

• Identification of potential customers and their needs. 
• Identifying proper projects and services for lending.
• Maintaining good relationships with customers.
• Obtaining suitable collateral to secure the loans.
• Evaluating the credit worthiness of the borrowers and Feasibility of 	
   the projects.
• Mechanisms for continuous monitoring and recovery measures etc.
 

In addition to the above factors, comprehensive and appropriate local and 
foreign training is provided to the staff involved in credit approving and  
recovering processes. Further strict credit discipline culture is created and 
maintained amongst staff as well as the borrowers. Regular monitoring systems 
too have been introduced and implemented at all applicable levels.
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LIQUIDITY RISK.
Since the inception of RDB, it has been maintaining the specified levels of 
liquidity ratios on a continuous basis throughout the year. The indicators that 
contribute to the liquidity ratios have been consistently monitored by the assets 
and liability committee. The excess funds of the bank were cautiously invested 
in government securities to maintain liquidity ratios imposed by the Central bank 
of Sri Lanka. The entire volumes of funding requirements were facilitated by the 
deposits mobilized by the bank, and lending is controlled and monitored in a 
diligent manner ensuring the maintenance of required liquidity ratios.
              
INTEREST RISK.
The asset and liability committee managed to steer the bank comfortably in a 
volatile market situation. The interest rates for deposits and advances varied 
on many occasions. The interest rates for deposits and lending were always 
decided by the bank appraising the rates paid by competitive financial institu-
tions in the country. Conceptually banks are exposed to interest rate risks and 
therefore they have to mitigate it by keeping a sufficient net interest margin and 
focusing on mobilizing low cost deposits.

OPERATIONAL RISK.    
Operational risks exist in all operational areas of the bank. These risks draw 
highest attention and vigilance of the management. Operational risks are  
primarily associated with systems and procedural errors, system failures, 
processing errors, human errors, non compliance of rules and regulations, 
Policies and procedures, violation of  law and regulations, frauds and theft, 
burglaries, misappropriation of funds and other unexpected  
calamities.

The bank has taken every attentive measure to maintain the aforesaid number 
of operational risks through regular monitoring systems, analysis, reviews and 
continuous training to manage them.	

PORTFOLIO AND COMPLIANCE RISKS.					   
Financial institutions are often exposed to higher risks in portfolio management 
due to distinctive number of large loans granted to customers. However RDB 
is less exposed to this risk due to the granting of many small loans. Further 
many of the advances released are backed by gold. The bank also on a regular 
basis monitor the sectors our advances are granted to maintain a healthy credit 
portfolio. Apart from the wise measures applied to the advances, bank focuses 
more attention to canvass low cost funds in achieving favorable deposit mix to 
mitigate any risks to the deposit portfolio. Meeting the requirements of financial 
authorities is another prime function of the management of the bank. The  
management on regular basis takes utmost care to ensure to maintain  
compliance with specifications set by the authorities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The manner in which the Corporate Governance is practiced by the Bank is 
outlined below.

The management and administration of the affairs and business of the bank is 
vested with the board of directors and accordingly the board is expected to 
provide leadership and exercise for the control of the bank. The board is 
responsible for management, performance and accountability and also for 
maintaining adequate accounts and records for safeguarding the assets of the 
bank.

KEY FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD.    

•	 Setting out the bank’s aims and objectives.
•	 Setting out the strategic directions and policy framework.
•	 Identifying the principal business risk of the bank and ensuring that the 	
	 risk is efficiently and favourably managed.
•	 Guiding the CEO in preparation of corporate plan of the bank to meet 	
	 the bank’s objectives.
•	 Approval of Annual budgets.
•	 Reviewing the annual budgets with the corporate plan  
	 monthly/quarterly and making revisions or changes necessary.
•	 Approval of capital and operational budgets and reviewing them  
	 periodically.
•	 Ensuring the bank’s performance and its role in compliance with all 	
	 relevant statutory and ethical standards.
•	 Periodic and timely reporting to the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.
•	 Ensuring that an effective system of internal controls is in place.  

BOARD MEETINGS
Board meetings are held on monthly basis with special meetings also being 
held as and when necessary. The board meetings and agendas are arranged 
by Chairman and General Manager with the concurrence of the board members 
and comprehensive information on financial performance and board papers are 
provided to the board members for their review and discussion. All decisions 
taken by the board are recorded by the secretary to the board and ratification 
of the board is obtained at the next scheduled meeting. The board is taking 
only policy decisions and the authority has been vested to the General Manager 
to take management decisions.  

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee appointed by the board comprises three directors and 
meet once in three months and the reports submitted by the Internal Auditors 
are discussed in details. In addition to that the branch wise progress, audit 
plans and the internal controls and systems are also discussed and appropriate 
actions are taken.
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Members of the Audit committee
1.	 Mr. P.V. Pathirana (Chairman)
2.	 Representative of the Treasury
3.	 Mr. Dammike Perera.
4.	 Miss.Maduri Munasinghe (Secretary to the Board)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
In accordance with the mandatory code of corporate governance issued by 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, Risk Management Committee of the bank is           
appointed by the Board of Directors.

Members of the Risk Management Committee 
•	 Ms. W.A.Nalini (Chairperson of the committee)
•	 Ms. Janaki Kuruppu 
•	 Mr. Dhammika Perera
•	 Mr. P.V. Pathirana
•	 General Manager/CEO

Meetings are held on a quarterly basis to assess all types of Risk Management 
Issues of the bank.
 
HUMAN RESOURCES & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The committee is represented by three members from the Board of Directors of 
the bank. However, General Manager attends these meetings only by invitation.
The principal function of the committee continues to be the determination of 
remuneration policies (salaries, allowances, and other financial payments)  
relating to directors, Chief Executive Officer and key management personnel of 
the bank. Hence the committee meets on quarterly basis during the year.

Members of the committee
•	 Ms. Janaki Kuruppu
•	 Representative of the Treasury
•	 Mr. P.V. Pathirana

The other specific functions listed under the Central Bank regulations  
consist of, 

•	 Setting goals and targets for the directors, CEO and the key  
	 management personnel 
•	 Evaluating performances of the CEO and key management  
	 personnel against set targets and goals periodically and determined 	
	 the basis for revising remuneration benefits and other payments of 	
	 performance based incentives.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE.
The Assets and Liability Committee appointed by the board comprise of three 
Deputy general managers and the General Manager/CEO. They meet once a 
month regularly and also meet as and when situation arises. At these meetings 
the rates for lending and deposits are decided by taking the prevailing  
financial market rates by keeping sufficient margin for the bank. Further rates 
for investments are also considered especially on Government securities. It’s 
also discussed on fixed assets such as buildings and other properties  
purchased by the bank. Lending and deposit rates are always considered on 
competitive rates in the financial market with special attention to cost benefit 
ratios.

Members of the Assets and Liability Committee. 

1.	  General manager/CEO
2.	  Deputy General Manager/Finance & Planning
3.	  Deputy General Manager/ Credit & Recoveries
4.	  Deputy General Manager/ HRD/Operations.
5.	  Asst. General Manager/ Business Development & Marketing.
6.	  Asst. General Manager/Finance & Planning

PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE.  
A committee comprising of three Deputy General Managers have been  
appointed to recommend all goods and services required by the bank for day 
to day operations including fixed assets for approval. All the goods and  
services are subject to the recommendation of the technical evaluation  
committee comprised by three Asst. General Managers. All Government  
procurement procedures are followed and the excess of limits for DGM's and 
GM/CEO are submitted to the board appointed tender committee for approval.

Procurement Committee Members.

1.	 Deputy General Manager   (HRD/Admin/Operations.)
2.	 Deputy General Manager   (Finance and Planning)
3.	 Deputy General Manager   (Credit & Recoveries)

Technical Evaluation Committee Members.   

1.	 Asst. General Manager (Administration/Operations)
2.	 Asst. General Manager (Finance & Planning)
3.	 Asst. General Manager (Credit & Recoveries)
4.	 Chief Manager              (IT if necessary)
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FINANCIAL
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The Directors have no direct or indirect interest or any other contracts or  
proposed contracts with the bank.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE HOLDINGS. 
The total share holders fund as at 31/12/2011 is Rs.3.7 billion which is very 
much higher than the minimum capital requirement of Rs. 1.5 billion imposed 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. The stated capital contributed by the share 
holders at end of the year is Rs. 1.09 billion and their percentage of share  
holding is as follows.

1.	 Government Treasury	 Rs. 877,446,710	 79.81%

2.	 Bank of Ceylon	 Rs.   74,184,480	   6.75%

3.	 People’s Bank	 Rs.   74,184,480	   6.75%

4.	 National Savings Bank	 Rs.   73,584,480	   6.69%

5.	 Total	 Rs.1099,400,150	   100%. 		
		   

PROFIT AND APPROPRIATIONS 
	 Profit before Tax	 Rs.	809,668,280

	 Income tax on Profit	 Rs.	529,654,734

	 Profit after Tax	 Rs.	280,013,546

	 Retain profit B/F	 Rs.	239,775,538 

	 Profit available for appropriation	 Rs.	519,789,084

	 Transferred to Reserves	 Rs.	508,560,413	

	 Dividends declared  

	 (transfered to reserves) 	 Rs.	 54,970,007

	 Retain profit	 Rs.	11,228,671

	 Earnings per share	 Rs.	 2.55    

RESERVES.	  
The composition of reserves  are as follows.

1.	 Statutory Reserve Fund.	 Rs.	453,324,883

2.	 General Reserve Fund.	 Rs.1,727,893,720	

3.	 Special Reserve Fund.	 Rs.	283,767,576

The board of directors of the bank has recommended a 5% dividend to be paid 
to the share holders for the year 2010 as the bank has to build up the reserves 
to meet the capital requirement of Rs. 4.0 billion at the end of 2014.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE. 
The total expenditure on acquisition of fixed assets during the year amounted 
to Rs.135 million. This was mainly due to establishment of head office and few 
new branches and purchasing of computer equipment.

DIRECTORS Report

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS WITH 
Regional Development Bank
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EMPLOYMENT
The total staff strength of the bank as at 31st December 2010 was 1946 
permanent and 275 trainees and contract employees. The bank has arranged 
a considerable number of training programs to upgrade their knowledge and 
skills in order to provide a competitive and quality service to the customers. 
Further the bank has made arrangements to recruit more staff needed with the 
proposed branch expansion program.

By order of the Board,
Secretary to the Board.   	
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The Board Audit Committee proceedings were based on the rules and  

regulations issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka. 

The Board Audit Committee is empowered to review and monitor the financial 

reporting process of the Bank. The Board is to provide additional assurance on 

the reliability of the Financial Statements through a process of independent &  

objective review. 

The Committee consists of three Directors from the Board. Deputy Secretary 

to the Treasury, Deputy General Manager of the National Savings Bank as 

ex-officio members of the Board and Chaired by non-executive director of the 

Board. The Deputy General Manager – Finance planning & Audit and General 

Manager /CEO attend the Committee by invitation. The Chief Internal Auditor 

normally attends for the meetings. Board Secretary functions as Secretary to 

the Committee. Periodically the external auditors attend the committee 

meetings on invitation.

The main functions of the committee are, to review and monitor internal controls 

and to ensure compliance of the Bank and assist the Board of Directors by : 

•	 Reviewing the form and content and monitoring the integrity of the 	

	 Bank’s financial statements and financial reporting system.

•	 Monitoring and reviewing the arrangements for ensuring the 

	 objectivity and effectiveness of the external and internal audit 

	 function.

•	 Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal 	

	 controls and risk management systems and make 

	 recommendations.

•	 Reviewing the internal audit reports, external audit management  

	 letters and subsequent follow up audits, thereon.

•	 Reviewing and making recommendations on the Bank’s ethical 

	 standards/procedures for ensuring compliance with regulatory 		

	 and financial reporting requirements and relationships with the 

	 relevant regulatory authorities. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
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The Board Audit Committee met once for the eight months period after the 

establishment of Regional Development Bank. It paid special attention to the 

following matters to achieve the aforesaid objectives

•	 Established the Internal Audit Function employing a qualified Chief 	

	 Internal Auditor and assign competent staff to the internal 

	 Audit Division.

•	 Review and implement internal controls and recommended 

	 modifications where necessary.

•	 Review and approve internal audit plan and the internal audit charter 	

	 for year 2011. 

•	 Review and approve the Internal Audit Manual.

•	 Review Internal Audit guide line and Audit programs.

•	 Established the formal complaints handling mechanism.

The Committee also reviewed the internal audit reports during the 		

year 2010 on Assets  & Liability  Verification Reports  of all 	 	 	

branches in Central province and North Western province.

The Internal Audit functions were directed at identifying business risks i.e., 

credit risks, operational risks, market risks, liquidity risks, etc. faced by the Bank 

by preventing and mitigating the effects of such risks and communicating and  

encouraging best practices and positive quality assurance throughout the 

Branch Network. Under the guidance of the Audit Committee, approved 

Internal Audit work plan was carried out by the Internal Audit Division of the 

Bank during the year under review. Further the Internal Audit division conducted 

system audits to eliminate inefficient procedures, improve the internal controls, 

check and minimize possible instances of frauds and errors. 

The Committee noted the strong commitment of the Internal Audit Department 

to make continued progress in improving efficiency and effectiveness of its 

functions. The Committee has invited external auditors to discuss management 

matters and also to discuss pre audit planning of 2010 Audit. The Committee 

has submitted its comments on these deficiencies and remedial measures were 

taken by the Management accordingly. 

Therefore the Audit Committee is of the view that adequate controls and  

compliance of the Bank’s are in place and maintains highest standards of  

integrity, financial reporting and risk management.

P. V. Pathirana
Chairman,
Board Audit Committee



69RDB Annual Report 2010

AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010

Report of the Auditor General

The audit of accompanying financial statements of Regional 

Development Bank (“Bank”) which comprise the balance 

sheet as at 31 December 2010, and the income statement, of 

changes in equity and cash flow statement for the 08 months 

period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory notes (Nos. 1 to 34) to the 

financial statements was carried out under my direction in 

pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution 

of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in 

conjunction with Section 33 of the Pradeshiya Sanwardhana 

Bank Act, No. 41 of 2008. In carrying out this audit, I was 

assisted by a firm of Chartered Accountants in public practice.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes 

designing, implementing and maintaining internal control 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatements, whether 

due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate 

accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that 

are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on my audit. The audit was carried out 

in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards which 

require that the audit shall be planned and performed to 

obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatements. The audit 

includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the 

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. T he 

audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used 

and significant estimates made by the management as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statements. 

I have obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purpose of my audit. I therefore believe that my audit provides 

a reasonable basis for my opinion.

Opinion

So far as appears from my examination, I am of opinion that 

the Regional Development Bank had maintained proper 

accounting records for the 08 months period ended 31 

December 2010 and the financial statements give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Regional Development 

Bank as at 31 December 2010 and its profit and cash flows 

for the 08 months period then ended in accordance with Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

These financial statements present the information required 

by the Banking Act, No. 30 of 1988 and subsequent 

amendments thereto.

Report to Parliament

My report to parliament in pursuance of provisions in Article 

154 (6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.

H.A.S. Samaraweera

Acting Auditor General
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INCOME STATEMENT

		  31.12.2010
	 Note	  Rs. 
		

Income	 3	  4,604,044,584 

		

Interest Income	 4	  4,377,054,382 

Interest Expense	 5	  (1,702,663,132)

		

NET INTEREST INCOME		   2,674,391,250 

		

Other Income	 6	  226,990,202 

		   2,901,381,452 

LESS : NON INTEREST EXPENSES	 	

		

Operating Expenses	 7	

Personnel Costs		   (1,111,704,531)

Provision for Staff Retirement Benefits	 	  (77,533,453)

Premises, Equipment and Establishment Expenses	 	  (288,022,817)

Fee and Commission Expenses		   (32,480,525)

Provision for Loan Losses 		   (29,020,713)

Other Overhead Expenses		   (141,746,558)

		

PROFITS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE  TAXATION		   1,220,872,855 

		

Less: Value Added Tax on Financial Services		   (411,204,575)

		   809,668,280 

		

Less: Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities 	 8	  (529,654,734)

		

PROFITS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER  TAXATION 		   280,013,546 

		

Retained Profit Brought Forward From Previous Year	 2.1.1.	  239,775,538 

		

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION		   519,789,084 

		

APPROPRIATIONS		

		

Transfers to Reserves		   (68,698,233)

Transfer to Reserve Fund		   (13,085,378)

Dividends	 9	  (18,305,991)

		

RETAINED PROFITS CARRIED FORWARD	 	  419,699,482 

		

Earnings Per Share	 10	  2.55 

		

Dividend Per Share - North Western	 9	  1.11

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 74 through 96 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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BALANCE SHEET

		  31.12.2010
	 Note	  Rs. 

ASSETS	  

		

Cash and Short Term Funds	 11	  609,664,935 

Treasury Bonds and Other Securities Eligible for Rediscounting  with Central Bank	 12	  2,503,330,853 

Other Investments	 13	  4,211,498,765 

Loans and Advances	 14	  37,020,622,757 

Bills Purchases		   123,346,329 

Interest Receivables	 15	  1,419,590,721 

Property, Plant and Equipments	 17	  404,981,710 

Other Assets	 18	  233,802,876 

Deferred Tax Assets	 22	  92,624,371 

TOTAL ASSETS 		   46,619,463,317 

		

LIABILITIES		

		

Deposits from Customers	 19	  37,949,924,535 

Borrowings	 20	  2,457,194,333 

Other Liabilities	 21	  2,544,921,886 

Deferred Government Grants	 23	  10,113,553 

		   42,962,154,307 

SHAREHOLDERS’  FUNDS		

		

Stated Capital	 25	  1,099,400,151 

Statutory Reserve Fund 	 26	  316,410,261 

Reserves	 27	  1,821,799,116 

Retained Profit	 	  419,699,482   

		   3,657,309,010 

		

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS		   46,619,463,317 

		

Commitment and Contingencies 	 30	  35,275,791

The Chief Financial Officer certifies that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of 

the Companies Act No, 7 of 2007.

………………………………..

Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on 

behalf of the Board by;

	………………………….	 ……………………….	 ……………………….	

	 General Manager	 Director 	 Director 

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 74  through 96 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.	

As at 31 December  2010
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	 Stated 	 Statutory	 Other 	 Special 	 General 	 Retained 	  Total 
	 Capital 	 Reserve 	 Reserves 	 Reserves 	 Reserve	 Earnings 
		  Fund	  Fund	  Fund 	  Fund 				  
	 Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	 Rs. 	  Rs. 

Balance as at 01 May  2010 	 846,291,530 	 303,324,883	 487,786,041	 232,055,494	 1,038,777,550	 239,775,538	 3,148,011,036 

Net Profit/(Loss) for the Period 	  -  	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -	  280,013,546 	  280,013,546 

Dividends 	  -  	  -   	  -   	  -  	  -   	  (18,305,991)	  (18,305,991)

Transferred to Stated Capital 	  253,108,621 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  253,108,621 

Medical Insurance Scheme  	  - 	  -   	  9,553,149 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  9,553,149 

Transferred to Welfare fund 	  -   	  -   	 (5,466,262)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (5,466,262)

Transferred to Medical fund 	  -   	  -   	 (8,634,051)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (8,634,051)

Transferred to General Reserve Fund	  -   	  -   	 (482,267,838)	  -  	 482,267,838 	  -	  -   

Transferred to Donatios (OL) 	  -   	  -   	  (971,039)	  -   	  -  	  -   	  (971,039)

Transferred from the Profit for the Period 	  -  	 13,085,378 	  -   	  13,739,647 	  54,958,587 	  (81,783,611)	  -   

Balance as at 31st December 2010 	 1,099,400,151 	 316,410,261 	  - 	  245,795,141	 1,576,003,975	  419,699,482 	  3,657,309,009

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 74 through 96 form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

		  31.12.2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 Note	  Rs. 
		
Interest  Received	 	 4,308,483,111 
Interest Payments	 	  (1,569,990,982) 
Fees and Commission Received	 6 	  226,950,202 
Cash Payments to Employees 		   (1,095,158,924) 
Payments on Other Operating Activities		   (1,208,616,142)
Gratuity	 21.1 	  (6,833,026)
Medical Fund		   (9,166,006)
Cash Effect on Adjustments made to the Loan Loss Provision		   79,282,667 
Fees and Commission Expenses		   (32,480,525)
Operating Profit Before Changes in Operating Assets		  692,470,375 
		
Increase in Operating Assets 		
		
Funds Advanced to Customers	 14 	  (6,645,418,060)
Other Assets		   186,700,651 
		
		   (6,458,717,409)
Increase in Operating Liabilities 		
		
Deposits from Customers	 19 	  5,781,618,652 
Other Liabilities		   237,632,875 
		   6,019,251,528 
		
Net Cash From Operating Activities Before Income Tax		   253,004,493
		
Income Tax Paid	 	  (581,989,182)
		
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities		   (328,984,689)
		
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES		
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment	 	  (134,930,473)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment	 	  298,379 
(Increase)/Decrease in Treasury Bonds and Other Investment	 12,13	  2,622,127,330 
		
Net Cash From Investing Activities 		   2,487,495,236 
		
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES		
		
Net Decrease in Other Borrowings	 	  (351,992,415)
Dividends Paid	 9 	  (18,305,991)   
Net Cash From Financing Activities		   (370,298,406)
		
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents	 	  1,788,212,141 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period	 	  786,452,794 
		
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Period	 32.1 	  2,574,664,935 
		
		   At the End  
		   of the Period 
		   Rs. 
Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents 		
		
Cash and Short Term Funds	 11 	  609,664,935 
Reveres Repurchase Agreement	 12 	  1,965,000,000 
		
		   2,574,664,935

The Accounting Policies and notes on pages 74 through 96 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010

1.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 	 General 

 	 The operations of Wayamba, Sabaragamuwa, 

Kandurata, Uva, Rajarata, Ruhuna  Development Banks 

were merged under the Pradeshiya Sanwardhana Bank 

Act, No. 41 of 2008 to form Regional  Development 

Bank on May  1, 2010. Subsequently, the Bank has 

expanded its business activities to the North Eastern 

Province too. At the inception the assets and liabilities 

were transferred from the Six Regional Development 

Banks. The registered office of the Bank is located at 

12th Floor, Access Tower, 278, Union place, Colombo 

02. 

1.2	 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

	 During the year, the principal activities of the Bank were 

providing thrift and credit facilities for the development 

of agriculture, industry, trade, commerce Pawning 

Brokering and other development activities, within the 

region and mobilizing savings and time deposits. 

1.3	 Date of Authorization for Issue

 

	 The financial statements of Regional Development 

Bank for the eight months ended December 31, 

2010 were authorized for issue in accordance with a 

resolution of the Board of Directors on    30 March, 

2011. 

2.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

POLICIES

2.1	 General Policies

2.1.1	 Basis of Preparation

	 The Financial Statements of the Bank have been 

prepared in Sri Lankan Rupees on a historical cost 

basis. No adjustments have been made for inflationary 

factors.

	 On May 1, 2010 following balances were transferred 

from Wayamba, Sabaragamuwa, Kandurata, Uva, 

Rajarata and Ruhuna Development Banks to Regional 

Development Bank.

		  Rs.

	 Total Assets	 40,836,935,933

	 Total Liabilities	 37,688,924,895

	 Net Assets (Note 2.1.1.1)	 3,148,011,038

	 2.1.1.1 Net Assets

	 Stated Capital	 846,291,530

	 Statutory Reserve Fund	 303,324,885

	 Reserves	 1,758,619,085

	 Retained Profit	 239,775,538

	 Net Assets	 3,148,011,038

2.1.2	 Statement of Compliance  

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles and the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 

laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of Sri Lanka. These principles and standards used 

in the preparation of these financial statements have 

been applied consistently with the preceding year 

and appropriately improved in compliance with the 

Revised Accounting Standards.

	

	 These Financial Statements are presented to disclose 

in a manner that income, expenditure, assets and 

liabilities ensure compliance with the requirements 

of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 23 -”Revenue 

Recognition and Disclosures in the Financial 

Statements of Banks”. 

	 As far as possible the prescribed formats specified 

by the Monetary Board in terms of Section 38(3) of 

Banking Act No.30 of 1988 as amended by Section 

76(H) of the Banking (Amendment) Act No. 33 of 

1995 for the publication of annual audited financial 

statement of Licensed Specialized Bank has been 

adopted in preparing these financial statements.
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2.1.3     Comparative Information

	 The accounting policies have been consistently 

applied by the Bank and, except for the changes in 

accounting policies discussed more fully in 2.2; are 

consistent with those used in the previous year. 

2.1.4     Changes in Accounting Policies

	 The accounting policies adopted are consistent with 

those of the previous financial year.  

2.1.5 	 Significant Accounting Judgments

	 Judgments 

	 In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting 

policies, management has made the following 

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, 

which has the most significant effect on the amounts 

recognized in the Financial Statements. 

	 Estimates and Assumptions

	 Defined Benefit Plans :

	 The cost of defined benefit plans- gratuity is 

determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial 

valuation involves making assumptions about discount 

rates, expected rates of return on assets, future 

salary increases, mortality rates and future pension 

increases. Due to the long term nature of these plans, 

such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. 

	 Deferred Tax Assets

	 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax 

losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 

profit will be available against which the losses can be 

utilized. Significant management judgment is required 

to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that 

can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and 

level of future taxable profits together with future tax 

planning strategies. 

2.1.6	 Taxation

	 a)  Current Taxes

	 Current income tax assets and liabilities for the 

current and prior periods are measured at the amount 

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 

authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or 

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

	 The provision for income tax is based on the elements 

of income and expenditure as reported in the Financial 

Statements and computed in accordance with the 

provisions of the relevant tax legislations.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognized 

directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 

income statement.

	 b)  Deferred Taxation  

	 Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability 

method, on temporary differences at the balance 

sheet date between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 

reporting purposes.

	 Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for 

all taxable temporary differences except where the 

deferred income tax liability arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 

taxable profit or loss. 

	 Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all 

deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of 

unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the 

extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the deductible temporary 

differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax 

assets and unused tax losses can be utilized except 

where the deferred income tax asset relating to the 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and, at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 

taxable profit or loss; and 

	 The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is 

reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to 

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

	 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 

measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 

to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is 

settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 

sheet date.

	 Deferred income tax relating to items recognized 

directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 

income statement.

2.1.7	 Borrowing Costs 

	 Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

2.2	 Valuation of Assets and their measurement bases

2.2.1	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net 

realisable value, after making due allowances for 

obsolete and slow moving items. Net realisable value 

is the price at which inventories can be sold in the 

ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 

completion and the estimated cost necessary to make 

the sale.

	 The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present 

location and condition is accounted using the following 

cost formula;

	 Consumable Stock – at purchase cost on weighted 

average basis

2.2.2	 Loans and Advances to Customers

	 Loans and Advances to customers are stated in 

the Balance Sheet net of provision for possible                    

loan losses and net of interest in suspense, which is 

not accrued to revenue.

	 Provisions for possible non-performing loans and 

advances are made on the basis of a continuous 

review of all advances to the customers, in accordance 

with the directives issued by the Central Bank of 

Sri Lanka applicable to the Banking Sector. These 

provisions relate to identified non-performing loans 

and advances.

	 Such guidelines require the classification of all loans 

(Principal and Interest) in arrears over 3 months to be 

classified as non-performing. All interest accrued from 

the date the advance is classified as non-performing 

should be suspended and credited to an interest-in-

suspense account. The bank has suspended interest 

on its entire non-performing Advances. Advances 

that are in arrears for 6 months or more but less 

than 12 months shall be classified as substandard 

accounts and a specific provision of 20% of the 

amount outstanding net of realizable security value is 

made. Advances that are in arrears for more than 12 

months but less than 18 months shall be classified 

as doubtful accounts and a specific provision of 50% 

of the amount outstanding net of realizable security 

value is made. Advances that are in arrears for more 

than 18 months shall be classified as loss accounts 

and a specific provision of 100% of the amount 

outstanding net of realizable security value is made. 

In addition, when calculating the Loan Loss provision 

for Substandard and Doubtful property mortgaged 

advances, 75% of the Force Sale Value (FSV) of the 

property is considered as the covered portion, while 

60% (1-2 Years in the loss category), 50% (2-3 Years 

in the loss category) and 40% (Over 3 Years in the 
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loss category) of the FSV of the property is considered 

as the covered portion of the property mortgaged 

advances in the loss category as per the Memo.( 

dated 18th December 2005 issued by the bank.) 

	 As per Central Bank circular issued on December 05, 

2006, The Bank has to make a general provision of 1% 

on total performing loans and advances and overdue 

loans and advances net of interest in suspense 

that has been debited to the respective accounts, 

except for loans given by pledging cash margin 

accounts, pawning advances and loans granted 

against government securities until the provision is 

accumulated to 0.9% of the said performing loans by 

the 31 December 2010. This provision to be adjusted 

to 0.5% up to the date of December 31, 2011.

 2.2.3	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in 

hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid 

investments, readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in 

value.

	 For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash 

and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and 

deposits in banks net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

Investments with short maturities i.e. three months or 

less from the date of acquisition are also treated as 

cash equivalents.

2.2.4	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 a)  Cost 

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are recorded at 

cost less accumulated depreciation and less any 

impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of 

replacing part of the plant and equipment when that 

cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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	 b)  Depreciation

	 The provision for depreciation is calculated by using a 

straight-line method on the cost of all property, plant 

and equipment other than freehold land, in order to 

write off such amounts over the estimated useful lives. 

The principal annual rates used are;

	 Building	 5% 	 Per annum

	 Computer Software	 33.33% 	 Per annum

	 Computer Equipment	 20% 	 Per annum

	 Office Equipment	                         20% 	 Per annum

	 Motor Vehicles	 20% 	 Per annum

	 Furniture	  15% 	 Per annum

	 Iron Safes	   10% 	 Per annum

	 c)  De-recognition  

	 An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-

recognised upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any 

gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset 

(calculated as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 

included in the income statement in the year the asset 

is derecognized.

2.2.5	 Leases

	 Finance Leases – where the Bank is the Lessee

	 Finance leases, which transfer to the Bank substantially 

all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the 

leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the 

lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 

at the present value of the minimum lease payments. 

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 

charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 

achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged 

reflected in the income statement.
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	 Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the 

shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and 

the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that 

the Bank will obtain ownership by the end of the lease 

term. The depreciation policy for depreciable leased 

assets is consistent with that for depreciable asset 

that are owned as described in 2.2.4.  

2.2.6	 Investments

	 Cost of investment includes purchase cost and 

acquisition charges such as brokerages, fees, duties 

and bank regulatory fees.  The company distinguishes 

and presents current and non current investment in 

the balance sheet.  

	 a)  Current Investments

	 Current investments are stated at market value or the 

lower of cost and marker value.

	 When Current investments are stated at lower of cost 

and market value, carrying amount is determined on 

an aggregate portfolio basis in total. 

	 Unrealized gains and losses on current investments 

carried at market value i.e. reduction to market 

value and reversals of such reductions required to 

reflect current investments at the lower of cost and 

market value, are credited or charged to the Income 

Statement.

	 b)  Long Term Investments

	 Long term investments are stated at cost. Carrying 

amounts are reduced to recognize a decline other 

than temporary, determined for each investment 

individually. These reductions for other than temporary 

declines in carrying amounts are charged to income 

statement.

2.2.7    Other Assets

	 All other assets are valued net of specific provision, 

where necessary, so as to reduce the carrying value of 

such assets to their estimated realizable value.  

2.3        Liabilities and Provision

2.3.1	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present 

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources 

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time 

value of money is material, provisions are determined 

by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 

pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 

of the time value of money and, where appropriate, 

the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is 

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 

of time is recognized as an interest expense.

2.3.2	 Commitment and Contingencies

	 All discernible risks are accoutered for in determining 

amount of other liabilities.

2.3.3	 Retirement Benefit Obligations

	 (a)  Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

	 The Company measures the present value of the 

promised retirement benefits of gratuity which is a 

defined benefit plan with the advice of an actuary 

every year using accrued benefit valuation method / 

projected benefits valuation method. Actuarial gains 

and losses are recognised as income or expenses 

over the expected average remaining working lives of 

the participants of the plan.
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	 (b)  Defined Contribution Plan – Employees Provident 

Fund & Employees’ Trust Fund

	 Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 

Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions 

in line with respective Statutes and Regulations. The 

Bank contributes 15 % and 3 % of gross emoluments 

of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and 

Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

2.3.4	 Grants & Subsidies

	 Grants are recognised where there is reasonable 

assurance that the grant will be received and all 

attaching conditions will be complied with. When the 

grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as 

income over the period necessary to match the grant 

on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended 

to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, 

it is set up as deferred income. Where the Company 

receives non-monetary grants, the asset and that 

grant are recorded at nominal amounts and is released 

to the income statement over the expected useful life 

of the relevant asset by equal annual installments

2.3.5	 Pawning Emergency Fund 

	 1% on pawning interest income is transferred to 

a suspense account to meet the future liabilities on 

pawning. 

2.4	 Statement of Income

2.4.1	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable 

that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank 

and the revenue and associated costs incurred or 

to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue 

is measured at the fair value of the consideration 

received or receivable net of trade discounts and sales 

taxes. The following specific criteria are used for the 

purpose of recognition of revenue. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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	 (a)  Interest Income from Customer Advances

	 Interest Income from Customer Advances is 

recognized on an accrual basis. Interest ceases to 

be taken into revenue when the recovery of interest 

and/or principal is in arrears for over three (3) months. 

Thereafter, interest on advances is accounted for on 

a cash basis. Interest on non-performing loans and 

advances is credited to the “Interest in Suspense” 

account, which is netted in the Balance Sheet against 

the relevant balance.

	 (b)  Interest Income from Other Sources

	 Interest Income on Government of Sri Lanka Treasury 

Bills and Central Bank Securities is recognized on an 

accrual basis. Discounts on purchase are amortized 

to income on a straight-line basis over periods to 

maturity.  

	 (c)  Fees and Commission Income

	 Fees and commission income comprise mainly of 

fees receivable from customers for guarantees and 

other services provided by the Bank. Such income is 

recognized as revenue as the services are provided. 

	 (d)  Dividend Income

	 Dividend income is recognised in the period in which 

dividend is declared.

	 (e)  Recovery of Non-performing Loans and 

Advances

	 Interest recovered from non-performing loans and 

advances is recognized as income on a cash basis. 

	 (f)  Grants -Capital received are amortised over the 

useful lifetime of the corresponding assets.
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	 (g)  Accounting for Lease Income

	 The Bank follows the finance lease method of 

accounting for lease income as recommended by Sri 

Lanka Accounting Standard No. 19.

	 The excess of aggregate lease rentals receivables 

over the cost of the leased assets constitutes the 

total unearned lease income at the commencement 

of a lease. The unearned lease income is taken into 

income over the term of the lease commencing with 

the month in which the lease is executed in proportion 

to the declining receivable balance. 

	 Gross earnings under finance leases in respect of 

lease rentals due, cease to be taken to revenue when 

they are in arrears for over three months. Thereafter, 

such income is recognised on cash basis.

2.4.2	 Terminal Benefits

	 The amount provided for as retirement gratuities are 

charged to the Income Statement.

2.4.3	 Expenditure Recognition 

(a)	 Expenses are recognised in the Income Statement 

on the basis of a direct association between the cost 

incurred and the earning of specific items of income. 

All expenditure incurred in the running of the business 

and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment 

in a state of efficiency have been charged to income in 

arriving at the profit for the year.

(b)	 For the purpose of presentation of the Income 

Statement the Directors are of the opinion that nature 

of expenses method presents fairly the elements of 

the Bank’s performance, and hence such presentation 

method is adopted. 
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3.	  INCOME	 31.12.2010

		  Rs.

	 Gross Income	 4,604,044,584 

		  4,604,044,584 

			 

	 Interest Income  (Note 4)	 4,377,054,382 

	 Other Income     (Note 6)	 226,990,202 

		   4,604,044,584 

4.	  INTEREST INCOME 	 31.12.2010 

		   Rs. 

	 Loans and Advances	 3,928,595,691 

	 Treasury Bills/Bonds and Placements with other Banks	  448,458,691 

		   4,377,054,382 

5.	 INTEREST EXPENSE 	 31.12.2010

		   Rs. 

	 Customer Deposits	 1,590,751,935 

	 Borrowings and Refinance	 98,444,737 

	 Interest on Leases	 47,074 

	 Overdraft Interest	 859,046 

	 Interest on Reverse Repurchase Agreements	 12,207,318 

	 Interest on Other short term loans	 353,022 

		  1,702,663,132 

	         		

6.	 OTHER INCOME	 31.12.2010

		   Rs. 

	 Fee and Commission Income	 179,784,400 

	 Recoveries from Provision for NPL	 47,133,815 

	 Dividends	 31,987 

	 Amortization of Revenue Grant	  40,000 

		  226,990,202 

7.	 OPERATING EXPENSES	 31.12.2010

		  Rs. 

	 Operating expenses include the following ;		

	 Personnel Costs	 	

	 Salaries	 623,253,678 

	 E.P.F	  75,829,738 

	 E.T.F	  15,133,017 

		  714,216,433 
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	 Premises, Equipment and Establishment Expenses		

	 Depreciation	 61,177,991 

	 Transport Charges	  1,931,215

	 Bank Relocation Expenses	 4,889,317 

		  67,998,523 

	 Fee and Commission Expenses		

	 Expenses on Litigation	  5,741,840 

	 Chairman’s Fee and Emoluments	 1,145,000 

	 Directors’ Emoluments	 735,859 

	 Auditors’ Remuneration 	 4,395,219 

		  12,017,918 

	 Other Overhead Expenses		

	 Donations	 1,930,331 

	 Advertising	 32,930,502 

		  34,860,833 

		   829,093,707

8.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE	

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs.

	 Current Income Tax	

	 Current Tax Expense on Ordinary Activities for the Period (Note 8.1)	 472,488,140 

	 Under/(Over) Provision of current taxes in respect of prior years	  -   

	 Social Responsibity Levy	 7,087,322 

	 Deferred Income Tax	

	 Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal) (Note 8.2)	  50,079,272 

		   529,654,734 

		

8.1	 Reconciliation Between Current Tax Expense and the Product of Accounting Profit.	

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs.

		

	 Accounting Profit (Profit  Before Tax )	 809,668,280 

	 Aggregate Disallowed Items	 (67,239,480)

	 Aggregate Allowable Expenses	 607,537,316 

	 Statutory Income from Trade	  1,349,966,116 

	 Taxable Income	 1,349,966,116 

		

	 Taxation Rate 	 35%

	 Tax Liability for the Period of Assessment 	 472,488,140 

		

	 Current Income Tax Expense	 472,488,140 
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8.2	 Deferred Tax Expense/(Income)	

	 Deferred Tax Income arising due to 	 50,079,272 

	 Origination and Reversal of Timing Differences	

		  50,079,272 

		

8.3	 Deferred Tax has been computed using current tax rate. 	

		

		

9.	 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED 	

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs.

	 Declared and Paid During the Period	

	 Final Dividend for 2009 Rs.1.1135 - North Western	  18,350,991 

		   18,350,991

10.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

10.1	 Basic Earnings Per  Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the eight months period attributable to ordinary 

shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the Eight months period. The 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the eight months period and the previous period are 

adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary   shares outstanding, without a corresponding change 

in the resources such as a bonus issue.

10.2	 The following reflects the income and share data used in the Basic  Earnings Per  Share computations.

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs.

	 Amount Used as the Numerator		

		

	 Net Profit	 280,013,546 

	 Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for Basic  Earnings Per Share	  280,013,546 

				  

		  31.12.2010

		  Number

	 Number of Ordinary Shares Used as Denominator		

	 Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares in issue	 109,940,015 

	 Applicable to Basic Earnings Per Share	

	

	 Adjusted Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares applicable to Basic Earnings Per Share	  109,940,015 

			 

	 Earnings Per Share	 2.55
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11.	 CASH AND SHORT TERM FUNDS			 

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs. 

	 Cash in Hand 	 155,377,751 

	 Cash at Bank	 454,287,184 

		  609,664,935 

			 

12.	 TREASURY BILLS AND OTHER SECURITIES ELIGIBLE FOR REDISCOUNTING WITH THE CENTRAL BANK	

	

	 Current	 31.12.2010

		  Rs. 

	 Treasury Bills	  538,330,853 

	 Repurchase Agreements	 1,978,250,991 

	 Provision for Non Performing Repo Investments	 (13,250,991)

		   2,503,330,853 

			 

	 Total Carrying Amount	  2,503,330,853

13.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS			 

		  31.12.2010

	 Non Current	 Rs. 

			 

	 Investments in Debentures (Note 13.1)	 120,000,000	

	 Premium Bond	 431,040 

	 Vanik Call Deposits	 23,500,000 

	 Provision for Vanik Call Deposit	  (23,500,000)

		  120,431,040 

				  

		  31.12.2010

	 Current	  Rs. 

	 Fixed Deposits	 3,339,677,307 

	 Equity Securities (Note 13.2)	 836,514 

	 Other Investment 	 750,553,904 

		   4,091,067,725 

	

	 Total Carrying amount	  4,211,498,765 
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13.1	 Investments in Debentures	 Face Value	 Carrying Value 
		  31.12.2010	 31.12.2010
		  Rs. 	  Rs. 
	 Current			 
	 Vanik Incorporation Ltd.	 10,500,000 	 10,500,000 
	 Provision for Vanik Debentures	  (10,500,000)	  (10,500,000)
	 	  -   	  -   
	 Non Current			 
	 BOC	 10,000,000 	  10,000,000 
	 Peoples Merchant Bank	  100,000,00 0 	  100,000,000 
	 DFCC Bank 	  10,000,000 	  10,000,000 
		   120,000,000 	  120,000,000 
		  120,000,000 	  120,000,000 
			 
13.2	 Investments in Equity Securities	 No of Shares	 Carrying Value 	  Market Value 
		  31.12.2010	 31.12.2010	 31.12.2010
	 Quoted		   Rs. 	  Rs. 
					   
	 DFCC Bank	 361 	 14,580 	  72,272 
	 Lanka Walltiles Ltd.	  1,575 	  45,000 	  218,768 
	 Merchant Bank Ltd.	  3,461 	  274,665 	  158,514 
	 People’s Merchant Bank Ltd.	 1,400 	 28,000 	  41,160 
	 Kelani Tyres Ltd.	  3,000 	  175,000 	  295,800 
	 Ceylinco Seylan Development Ltd 	  10,000 	  150,000 	  -   
	 CRIB	  5,000 	  50,000 	  50,000 
			    737,245 	 836,514 
	 Provision for Non Performing Shares	 	  (150,000)	  -   
	 Provision for Shares - Devaluation	 	  249,269 	  -   
			    836,514 	 836,514

14.	 LOANS AND ADVANCES			 
		  31.12.2010
		  Rs. 

	 Cultivation Loans	  947,068,933 
	 Pledge Loans	 483,126,456 
	 Agriculture Loans	 3,666,000,295 
	 Agriculture Equipments	  109,559,163 
	 Live Stock Loans	  721,677,610 
	 Fisheries Loans	 197,070,034 
	 Industrial Loans	 2,240,466,593 
	 Commercial Loans	 3,390,068,338 
	 Transport Service Loans	  259,601,687 
	 Housing Loans	  7,177,115,845 
	 Consumption Loans	 1,856,312,527 
	 Rescheduled Loans	  8,022,116 
	 Loans Against Deposits	  1,106,462,446 
	 Pawning Advances	  13,964,166,348 
	 Leasing	  50,025,912 
	 Staff Loans	  790,205,576 
	 Non Performing Loans (Note 14.1)	  1,151,711,837 

		  38,118,661,716 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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	 Less : 	 	

	 Specific Provision for Non-Performing Loans and Advances & Leasing  (Note 16)	 (783,834,135)

	 General Provision for Performing Loans and Overdue Advances (Note 16)	  (195,428,134)

	 Emergency Fund Pawning	  (116,449,303)

	 Interest in Suspense for Rescheduled Loans	 (2,327,387)

		   37,020,622,757 

			 

14.1	 Non Performing Loans have been categorised as follows		  31.12.2010

			   Rs. 

		

	 Special Mention Loans	 102,452,306 

	 Special Mention Leases	 7,281,890 

	 Special Mention Pawning	 13,566,557 

	 Substandard Loans	 139,004,310 

	 Doubtful Loans	 116,056,420 

	 Loss Loans	  762,259,931 

	 Loss Pawning	  11,090,423 

		  1,151,711,837 

15.	 INTEREST RECEIVABLES		  31.12.2010

			    Rs. 

		

	 Interest Receivables	  2,084,748,222 

	 Less: Interest in Suspense (Note 16)	  (665,157,501)

		  1,419,590,721

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010
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16.  MOVEMENT IN THE PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES AND INTEREST IN SUSPENSE	 			 

				    General	 Specific 	 Total	  Interest in  
				    Provision	 Provision	 Provision	 Suspense 
				    Against	 Against 	 Against 			 
				    Advances	 Advances 	  Advances 		
				    Rs	  Rs. 	 Rs. 	  Rs. 

								      
As at 1 May 2010				    184,407,103 	  815,427,194 	 999,834,297 	 792,316,984 
Amounts Written Off 	 	 	 	 (6,060,045)	 (400,098)	 (6,460,143)	  -   
Recoveries of Advances Written Off in Previous Period	 	 	 	 530,196 	 3,471,022 	  4,001,218	  -   
Provision Made During the Period				    27,629,764 	 42,371,822 	 70,001,586 	 19,468,965 
Recoveries of Provision Made During the Previous Period			   (11,078,883)	 (77,035,804)	 (88,114,687)	 (159,771,361)
Interest Suspense During the Period	 	 	 	  -   	  -   	  -   	 172,408,015 
Suspense Interest Recovered	 	 	 	  -   	  -   	  -   	 (159,265,102)
As at December 31,2010				     195,428,135 	 783,834,136 	  979,262,271 	 665,157,501 

									       
17.   PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	 							     
	 Land &	 Bank 	 Office 	 Computer	 Furniture, Fittings	 Motor	 Total 
	 Building	 Safe	 Equipment 	 Accessories	 & Others	 Vehicles		
	 Rs.	 Rs.	  Rs. 	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.

Cost 								      
Balance as at 01.05.2010	  108,637,926	 46,745,747	 238,769,815	 167,157,941	 136,525,369 	 118,720,371 	 816,557,170 
Additions During  the Period	  -   	 2,023,867 	  78,758,169 	 28,026,626 	  11,625,159 	  12,242,987 	 132,676,807 
Write Off 	  -   	  -   	  (10,455,708)	 -   	  -   	  -   	 (10,455,708)
Transfer During  the Period	  -   	  47,530,086 	  (3,056,252)	  3,631,357 	  (68,527,935)	 3,958,727 	 (16,464,018)
Disposals during the Period	  -   	  -   	  (4,916,137)	  (2,522,772)	  (3,845,352)	  -   	 (11,284,261)
Reclassification  -  Addition	  -   	  -   	  1,176,532 	  21,041,055 	  388,721 	  -   	  22,606,308 
Reclassification  -  Deduction	  -   	  -   	  (23,499,964)	  (3,864,949)	  (14,499,420)	  -   	 (41,864,334)
Balance as at 31.12.2010	  108,637,926 	  96,299,700 	  276,776,454 	 213,469,257 	  61,666,542 	  134,922,085 	 891,771,964 
								      
Working Progress								      
Balance as at 01.05.2010	  14,692,753 	  -   	  -   	  263,008 	  -   	  -   	 14,955,761 
Additions During  the Period	  2,253,665 	  -   	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 2,253,665 
Transfer During  the Period	  -   	  -   	  -   	 (263,008)	  -   	 -   	  (263,008)
Balance as at 31.12.2010	  16,946,418 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	 16,946,418 
								      
Total Value 	 125,584,344 	 96,299,700 	 276,776,454 	 213,469,257 	  61,666,542 	 134,922,085 	 908,718,382 
								      
Accumulated Depreciation								      
Balance as at 01.05.2010	  21,426,965 	  31,969,230 	 156,807,876 	  119,522,025 	  39,763,247 	  86,225,101 	  455,714,444 
Charge for the Period	  2,771,493 	  4,228,584 	  23,159,722 	  18,218,658 	  4,900,022 	  7,899,512 	 61,177,991 
Written Off	  -   	  -   	  (8,956,052)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (8,956,052)
Transfer During  the Period	  -   	  24,038,244 	  (2,139,246)	  98,578 	  (95,119)	  3,603,733 	 25,506,190 
Disposals During the Period	  -   	  -   	  (4,685,554)	  (1,993,258)	  (3,817,244)	  -   	  (10,496,055)
Reclassification  -  Addition	  -   	  -   	  1,176,382 	  10,512,482 	  246,157.02 	  -   	 11,935,021 
Reclassification  -  Deduction	  -   	  -   	  (22,998,725)	  (2,136,781)	  (6,009,360)	  -   	  (31,144,866)
Balance as at 31.12.2010	  24,198,459 	 60,236,058 	 142,364,403 	 144,221,705 	  34,987,702 	 97,728,346 	 503,736,673 
								      
Total Depreciation	 24,198,459 	 60,236,058 	 142,364,403 	 144,221,705 	  34,987,702 	 97,728,346 	 503,736,673 

								      
 17.1 Net Book Values							       31.12.2010
        At Cost or Valuation 							       Rs.

								      
Lands & Buildings							       84,439,468 
Iron Safes	 	 	 	 	 	 	 36,063,641 
Furniture & Equipments	 	 	 	 	 	 	 26,678,840 
Machinery ( Office ) Equipments	 	 	 	 	 	 	 134,412,051 
Motor Vehicles							       37,193,740 
Computer Equipment	 	 	 	 	 	 	 63,725,698 
Computer Software							       5,521,854 
Working Progress							       16,946,418 
							       404,981,710 

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment						      404,981,710 
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18.	 OTHER ASSETS	 31.12.2010
		  Rs.

	 Deposits and Prepayments	  152,249,344 
	 Other Debtors	  81,349,406 
	 Cashiers’ Excess and Shortage	  204,126 
		  233,802,876 
			 
		
19.	 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS	 31.12.2010	
		  Rs.

	 Savings Deposits (Note 19.1)	 16,944,576,147 
	 Time Deposits (Note 19.2)	 21,005,348,388 
		  37,949,924,535 

19.1	  Savings Deposits	 31.12.2010
		  Rs.

	 General Savings	 10,645,372,102 
	 Senior Citizens Savings	 42,055,171 
	 Dormant Savings	  1,073,710,387 
	 Investment Savings	 3,773,879,568 
	 Minor Savings	 1,006,784,744 
	 Dormant Investment Savings	 402,774,175 
		  16,944,576,147 

19.2	 Time Deposits	 31.12.2010	
		   Rs. 

	 Fixed Deposit	 15,066,063,343 
	 Institutional Fixed Deposit	  4,922,488,966 
	 Senior Citizens Fixed Deposits	 644,003,436 
	 Certificates of Deposits	 211,078,123 
	 Call Deposits	 150,945,181 
	 Staff Security Deposits	 10,769,339 
		  21,005,348,388 
			 
20.	 BORROWINGS	 31.12.2010
		  Rs. 

	 Bank Overdraft	  436,734 
	 Short Term Loan	 12,364,171 
	 Refinance Borrowings- Central Bank	  1,075,883,563 
	 Refinance Borrowings - Other Institutions	 1,368,509,865 
		   2,457,194,333 
		
	
	 Due within One Year	 746,118,934 
	 1-5 Years	 1,515,523,925 
	 After Five Years	 195,551,474 
		   2,457,194,334 
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21.	 OTHER LIABILITIES	 31.12.2010

		  Rs.

	 Accrued Expenditure 	 1,181,424,370 

	 Provision for Gratuity (Note 21.1)	 503,979,675 

	 Other Creditors	 735,659,631 

	 Other Provisions	 491,137 

	 Provisions for Loan Contingencies	 20,727,667 

	 Staff Medical Fund	 24,904,959 

	 Staff Welfare Fund	 5,260,713 

	 Loan Assurance Fund	 3,118,718 

	 Unclaimed Balances	 51,517,980 

	 Special Revolving Funds	 16,891,338 

	 Wirusevana Fund	 945,697 

		  2,544,921,886 

			 

21.1 	  Provision for Gratuity						    

		  As At	 Charge for 	 Payments during 	 As At

		  01.05.2010	 the Period	 the Period	 31.12.2010

		  Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.	 Rs.

						    

	 Retirement Benefit Obligation - Gratuity	 433,279,247 	 77,533,453	 (6,833,026)	 503,979,675 

						    

22.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES					   

				  

	 Deferred Tax Assets , Liabilities and Income Relates to the Followings 	 	 	 	

					   

				    Balance Sheet	 Income Statement

				    Rs.	 Rs.

						    

	 Deferred Tax Liability					   

	 Capital allowances for tax purposes 			   152,168,363 	 (119,036,740)

				    152,168,363 	

	

	 Deferred Tax Assets 					   

	 Defined Benefit Plans 	 	 	 176,392,886	 35,887,583 

	 General Provision for Performing Loans and Advances			   68,399,847 	 33,069,885 

				    244,792,733 		

	 Deferred tax income / (expense ) 				    (50,079,272) 

						    

	 Reflected in the Balance Sheet as follows	 	 	 	 	

	 Deferred Tax Assets 			   244,792,733 		

	 Deferred Tax Liabilities 			   152,168,363 		

	 Deferred Tax Assets /Liabilities (Net) 	 	 	 92,624,371 	
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23.	 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 			 

		  31.12.2010

		  Rs.

						    

	 Balance as at Beginning of the Period				    10,178,960 

	 Grant Received During the Period	 	 	 	  -   

	 Amortisation During the Period				     (65,407)

	 Balance as at the end of the Period				    10,113,553 

24.	 STATED CAPITAL						    

					   

24.1	 Stated Capital						    

				    31.12.2010

				    Number	 Rs.

	 Ordinary Shares			   109,940,015 	 1,099,400,151 

				    109,940,015 	 1,099,400,151

24.2	 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one 

vote per share at a meeting of the share holders.

	 Issued and Fully Paid	 Balance	 Debenture	 Issued for	 Issued for	 Balance 

		  As at	 & Debenture Interest	 Cash During	 Non cash	 As at 

			   Transper to Shares	 the Period	 Consideration			 

		  01.05.2010	 During the Period			   31.12.2010

		  Number	 Number	 Number	 Number	  Number 

							     

	 Number of Ordinary shares	 84,629,153	 25,310,862 	  -   	  -  	  109,940,015

25	 STATUTORY RESERVE FUND

			   Balance as at 	  Appropriations 	  Transfers 	 Balance as at  

			   01.05.2010	 During	  From/to 	 31.12.2010

				     the Period 	 Reserves			 

			    Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	 Rs.  

							     

	 Statutory Reserve Fund 	 	  303,324,883  	 13,085,378   	  -   	  316,410,261

26.	 RESERVES

						      31.12.2010

						      Rs.

	 Special Reserve Fund					     245,795,139 

	 General Reserve Fund					     1,576,003,977 

						      1,821,799,116
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26.1	 Movement of Reserves During the Period

			   Balance as at 	  Appropriations 	  Transfers 	 Balance as at  

			   01.05.2010	 During	  From/to 	 31.12.2010

				     the Period 	 Reserves			 

			    Rs. 	  Rs. 	  Rs. 	 Rs.  

							     

	 Special Reserve Fund	 	 232,055,494 	  13,739,647   	 -	  245,795,140 

	 General Reserve Fund		  1,038,777,550	 54,958,587	 482,267,838	 1,576,003,975 

			   1,270,833,044 	  68,698,233   	 482,267,838  	 1,821,799,115

27.	 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE  BALANCE SHEET DATE				  

						    

	There have been no material events occurred after the Balance Sheet date that requires adjustment to or disclosure in 

the Financial Statements other than disclosed above.					   

					   

28.	 DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS   					   

						    

Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Bank or its parent	 			 

						    

The key management personnel of the Bank are the members of its Board of Directors.			 

	The Directors of the Bank during the financial Period were:	 	 	 	 	

						    

Mr. Dhammika Perera 						    

Mrs. Chandani Werapitiya 						    

Mrs. W.A. Nalani 	 	 	 	 	 	

Mrs. Sujatha Cooray 						    

Mr. P.V. Pathirana

	 During the Period, the Bank has entered in to transactions with the following Related Parties.

	 Mr. Dhammika Perera is a Director of the Bank, is also the Deputy General Manager of  National Saving Bank, with 

which, the Bank has invested in Fixed Deposit amounting to Rs. 30,000,000.00/- as at December 31, 2010 and during 

the current financial period Rs. 36,714,109.59 was received from the said Bank as an interest income from investment 

in Fixed Deposits.

 

	 Mrs. Chandani Werapitiya was a Director of the Bank, is also Deputy General Manager of People’s Bank., with which, 

the bank has had following transaction.

 

	 The Bank maintains current accounts with the said Bank and the balance as at December 31, 2010 was                             

amounted to Rs. 29,758,530.33 and also invested in Fixed Deposits and in Repurchase Agreements amounting to        

Rs. 19,492,731.18/- and Rs. 1,314,951,633.00/- respectively. During the current financial period Rs. 22,287,687.34/- 

and Rs. 32,866,474.66/- was received from the said Bank as an interest income from the investment in Fixed Deposits 

and Repurchase Agreements respectively.
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	 Mrs. W.A. Nalani was a Director of the Bank, is also Deputy General Manager of Bank of Ceylon ., with which, the Bank 

has had following transaction.

 

	 The Bank maintains current accounts with the said Bank and the balance as at December 31, 2010 was amounted 

to Rs. 72,050,361.56   and also invested in Fixed Deposits amounting to Rs. 2,475,793,972.60/-. During the current 

financial period Rs. 92,822,286.22/- was received from the said Bank as an interest income from investment in Fixed 

Deposits.

  

	 Mrs. Sujatha Cooray and Mr. P.V. Pathirana are Directors of the Bank , are also the Directors of Government Treasury, 

with which, the bank has no direct or indirect transactions.

29.	 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

	 Financial Commitments  					     31.12.2010

						      Rs. 

							     

Bank Guarantees					      35,275,791 

						      35,275,791 

	 Contingent Liabilities

	 Legal Claims

	 Wayamba Province

	 Case No.2895/M – District Court Puttalam

	 Mr. M.A.T.A. Marasinghe, Attorney-at-Law appears on behalf of the Bank.

	 The case has been filed against the bank by N.I.Mallawarchchi. By executing, parate rights bank has sold the subject 

land to the plaintiff by a auction dated 29/12/2004. The Plaintiff has now pleaded Rs.2500000/- as damages from the 

bank for the failure to execute the transfer deed in due course.  Case is fixed on 25th March 2011 in order to file the 

proxy.

 

	 Case No.1663/L – District Court Naththandiya

	 Mr. M.A.T.A. Marasinghe, Attorney-at-Law appears on behalf of the Bank.

	 1st Defendant (our customer) has mortgaged a land to the Bank which was bought by him under a transfer deed 

from the plaintiff. Plaintiff’s position was that, the transfer deed is a fraudulently executed deed by the 1st defendant. 

Plaintiff has filed the case against 1st Defendant – the customer and the Bank as the 2nd defendant and pleaded 

Rs.800,000/- as damages. Bank is in the position that, respective panel lawyer has duly checked the title and there 

were no discrepancies on the title. Case is fixed for on 31st March 2011 in order to file the proxy.

 

	 Central Province

	 Case No.6311/L – District Court Matale

	 Ms. Sandyani Wijesekera appears on behalf of the Bank.The case has been filed against the bank by Hariraman Nadar 

Vishwanadan, a former land lord of a RDB Branch. Plaintiff has pleaded to eject the RDB from the respective premises, 

Rs.23000/- per month till the handing over of the vacant possession, & Rs.550,000/- as damages caused to the 

premises.
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	 Bank has already vacated from the respective premises. Further it was called a technical report in respect of the 

damages caused. The case is due for the answer of the defendant bank, on 20th May 2011.

 

	 North Central province

	 Case No.20324/M – District Court Anuradhapura

	 Mr. Hiran Jayasuriya Appears on behalf of the Bank

	 Bank has granted a loan to the Plaintiff secured by a vehicle. Due to default of installments bank has ceased the 

property. Plaintiff had filed a case against the bank claiming Rs.2,000,000/- as damages. For the damages caused to 

him on the seizure. 

30.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT

	 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of the Cash Flow Statements

30.1	 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalents balance

						      31.12.2010

						      Rs.

					   

	 Cash and Short Term Funds 					     609,664,935 

	 Repurchase Agreements					      1,965,000,000 

	 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement			  2,574,664,935

31.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES	 			 

					   

	 “Except for the matters stated in Note 29 to these financial statements there were no related party transactions during 

the period.”
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32.	 MATURITY ANALYSIS 						    

					   

	 An analysis of the interest bearing assets and liabilities based on the remaining period at the Balance Sheet date to the 

respective contractual maturity dates are as follows.					   

					   

		  Up to	 3-12 Months	 1 - 3   Years 	 3 - 5  Years	 Over 5 Years 	  Total 

		  3 Months 						    

	 ASSETS							     

	 Interest Earning Assets							     

	 Treasury Bills	  279,982,858	 258,347,996 	 - 	  -   	 	  538,330,853 

	 Repurchase Agreements	  1,965,000,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -	 1,965,000,000 

	 Fixed Deposits 	  807,992,731 	 2,531,684,576 	  -   	  -   	  -	 3,339,677,307 

	 Investment in Debentures	  - 	  110,000,000 	 10,000,000 	  -   	  -   	  120,000,000 

	 Investments in Shares	  - 	  -  	  -   	  587,245	  -	 587,245 

	 Investments in Promissary notes	  551,435,123 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  551,435,123 

	 Investments in Commercial Papers	  100,000,000	 98,619,329 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  198,619,329 

	 Investments in Premium Bond	  -   	  -   	  431,040 	  -   	  -   	  431,040 

	 Investments in Savings Deposits	  499,452 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  499,452 

	 Loans and Advances	  4,547,446,037 	 14,895,464,911 	  7,878,677,575	 6,091,147,797 	 3,554,213,560	  36,966,949,880 

	 Bills Purchased	  123,346,329 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  123,346,329 

	 Non Performing Loans	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,151,711,837 	  1,151,711,837 

		   8,375,702,530 	 17,894,116,811 	 7,889,108,615	 6,091,735,042 	 4,705,925,397	  44,956,588,395 

								      

	 Non Interest Earning Assets							     

	 Cash and Bank	  609,664,935 	  -  	  -   	  -	  -   	  609,664,935 

	 Other Assets	  105,276,354 	   104,056,507 	 11,030,565 	  106,063,821	  -   	  326,427,247 

	 Interest Receivables	  354,538,003 	 1,065,052,718	  -   	  - 	  -   	  1,419,590,721 

	 Property Plant and Equipment	  8,099,634 	  32,398,537 	  40,498,171 	  101,245,428 	  222,739,940 	  404,981,710 

		   1,077,578,926 	 1,201,507,762 	  51,528,736 	  207,309,249 	  222,739,940 	  2,760,664,613 

								      

	 Total Assets	  9,453,281,456 	 19,095,624,573 	 7,940,637,351	  6,299,044,291	 4,928,665,337	  47,717,253,008 

								      

	 LIABILITIES							     

	 Interest Bearing Liabilities							     

	 Customer Deposits	  9,526,160,122	 12,690,563,898	  6,538,341,935 	  3,681,269,900	 5,513,588,680	  37,949,924,535 

	 Borrowings	  122,656,406 	  623,462,528 	  904,425,568 	 611,098,357	 195,551,474 	  2,457,194,334 

		   9,648,816,527 	 13,314,026,426 	  7,442,767,503 	 4,292,368,257	  5,709,140,155	  40,407,118,869 

								      

	 Non Interest Bearing Liabilities							     

	 Other Liabilities	  569,036,611 	 1,188,053,678 	 176,237,936 	  -	  611,593,660	  2,544,921,886 

	 Interest in Suspense	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  2,327,387 	  2,327,387 

	 Loan Loss Provision	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  979,262,269 	  979,262,269 

	 Emergency Fund Pawning	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  116,449,304 	  116,449,304 

	 Provision for Shares - Devaluation	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -  	  (249,269)	  (249,269)

	 Deferred Government Grant	  - 	  -   	  -   	  - 	  10,113,553 	  10,113,553 

	 Shareholders’ Fund	  -   	  -   	  -	  -   	  3,657,309,009 	  3,657,309,009 

	 	  569,036,611 	  1,188,053,678 	 176,237,936 	  - 	  5,376,805,914	  7,310,134,139 

								      

	 Total Liability 	  10,217,853,138	 14,502,080,104 	 7,619,005,439 	 4,292,368,257	 11,085,946,068 	  47,717,253,008

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Eight Months ended 31 December 2010



95RDB Annual Report 2010

33.	 SIGNIFICANT RISK ASSOCIATED WITH THE BANK’S OPERATIONS

	 CREDIT RISK

	 Credit Risk is minimized by controlling the various stages of the credit facility. Therefore, a rigorous appraisal, approval 

and disbursement procedure has to be put in place to mitigate the risks. Line management has been given specific 

limits for credit approvals. Need assessment is done at origin by field visits. Appraisal is a joint function at branch 

level. Once approved, documentation is examined by the next higher authority before disbursement. Approved limits 

are reviewed by the next higher authority within 60 days. The Recoveries Committee meets monthly to monitor the 

amortization process. It identifies and segregates the problem areas and puts into motion a programme to remedy the 

position. As the quality is large against the volume, clusters of problem loan customers are made the responsibility of 

different levels of line management. Enhancing the risk awareness at all levels of staff is also done by this committee at 

training workshops and at the quarterly review meeting of branch managers. 

	 Specific provisions are made on the non-performing portfolio as per the directions given by the Central Bank. Branch 

inspections carried out by the Internal Audit Division focus on the credit administration functions of the managers under 

delegated authority. On the directions of the Audit Committee of the Board, a full credit has been done by this division 

in respect of all facilities granted in the year 2009 to ensure that all relevant procedures have been followed and all 

convents are fulfilled prior to disbursement of funds.

	 The management is reviewing the entire credit appraisal and review process, credit policies and procedures with a view 

to introducing changes into the credit administration process where necessary.

	 INTEREST RATE RISK

	 The two factors affecting the interest rate risk are the Mismatch Risk and Basis Risk. The Mismatch Risk is the risk 

coming from carrying assets & Liabilities maturing at different time intervals. Maturity analysis of all interest sensitive 

assets liabilities is done within five time frames. Gaps between assets and liabilities have been maintained at satisfactory 

levels, by making adjustments under market pressures.

	 LIQUDITY RISK

	 The Bank’s ability to cover the maturing obligations in a timely and cost effective manner is the measure for the Liquidity 

Risk. To mitigate this risk a healthy portfolio of gilt-edged securities is always maintained.

  

	 OPERATIONAL RISK

	 Operational Risks include a number of factors. These risks arise as a resulting of processing errors, human errors, 

system and procedural failures, non-compliance with internal policies, laws and regulations, natural disasters, frauds, 

thefts and burglaries. These risks can never be fully eliminated. The Board has taken steps to lesson such risks by 

continuously assessing the systems of control and check to ascertain that an appropriate control framework is in place 

and to ensure sufficient indemnity cover is in force at all times.  

	 The Audit Sub-Committee of the Board comprising of non-executive directors examines on a quarterly basis the quality 

and effectiveness of the systems of internal controls within the Bank. The Chief Internal Auditor monitors the Banks 

compliance with applicable laws and regulations. He reports to the Audit Sub- Committee. The Bank is substantially in 

compliance with Central Bank directions and co-operate governance guideline.
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	 MARKET RISK

	 Market Risk is associated mainly with investments. Exposure in long term investments has been reduced considering 

the movements in interest rates. The Bank does not deal in securities other than government securities.

	 LEGAL RISK

	 This risk results from legal consequence causing material or unexpected financial loss to the Bank. External legal 

counsel is always taken in respect of matters which require legal advice and under specific circumstances. The legal 

obligations the Bank has to meet in its capacity as a bank, taxpayer, employer and a body corporate are duly monitored. 

Compliance with all statutory requirements is reported at Board level.
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North Central Province 

Regional Office
Anuradhapura Town Office
Mihinthale Branch
Thambuththegama Branch
Kahatagasdigiliya Branch
Galnewa Branch
Thalawa Branch
Medawachchiya Branch
Thirappane Branch
Rambewa Branch
Galenbidunuwewa Branch
Gonapathirawa Branch
Kekirawa Branch
E/C Thambuththegama
District Office Polonnaruwa
Polonnaruwa Branch
Medirigiriya Branch
Pulasthigama Branch
Hingurakgoda Branch
Bakamuna Branch
Manampitiya Branch
Gal Amuna Branch
Siripura Branch
Kaduruwela Branch
Aralaganwila Branch
Sewanapitiya Branch

Southern province 
Regional Office
District Office Galle
District Office Hambanthota
District Office Mathara
Ahangama Branch
Akmeemana Branch
Akuressa Branch
Ambalanthota Branch
Angunakola Pelessa Branch
Baddegama Branch
Balapitiya Branch
Barawakumbura Branch
Batapola Branch
Beliatta Branch
Matara Town Branch
Deiyandara Branch
Deniyaya Branch
Devinuwara Branch
Dikwella Branch
Elpitiya Branch
Galle Branch
Gandara Branch
Gonagalpura Branch
Hakmana Branch
Hambanthota Branch
Mathara Branch
Hikkaduwa Branch
Imaduwa Branch
Kaluwella Branch
Kamburugamuwa Branch
Kamburupitiya Branch
Karandeniya Branch
Karapitiya Branch
Katuwana Branch
Kekanadura Branch
Kirinda Branch
Lunugamwehera Branch
Mawarala Branch
Middeniya Branch
Mirissa Branch
Morawaka Branch
Neluwa Branch

BRANCH LIST

The Network of Regional Developmet Bank Service Centers.  
Head Office - Regional Development Bank - 12th Floor, Access Tower, 278, Union Place, Colombo 02.

Pamburana Pawning Centre
Galle Pawning Centre
Pitabeddara Branch
Pitigala Branch
Ranna Branch
Sooriyawewa Branch
Thangalle Branch
Thalgaswela Branch
Thihagoda Branch
Thissamaharama Branch
Udugama Branch
Uragasmanhandiya Branch
Urubokka Branch
Walasmulla Branch
Warapitiya Branch
Weeraketiya Branch
Weligama Branch
Yakkalamulla Branch

Sabaragamuwa Province
Regional Office
Rathnapura Branch
Pelmadulla Branch
Balangoda Branch
Embilipitiya Branch
Kolonna Branch
Eheliyagoda Branch
Kalawana Branch
Godakawela Branch
Erathna Branch
Kuruwita Branch
Niwithigala Branch
Kahawatta Branch
Rakwana Branch
Kiriella Branch
Pothupitiya Branch
Waligepola Branch
Sri Palabaddala Branch
Kegalle Branch
Pitagaldeniya Branch
Rambukkana Branch
Mawanella Branch
Warakapola Branch
Aranayake Branch
Kithulgala Branch
Ruwanwella Branch
Dewalegama Branch
Bulathkohupitiya Branch
Deraniyagala Branch
Hemmathagama Branch
Nelundeniya Branch
Yatiyanthota Branch
Kotiyakumbura Branch
Dehiowita Branch
Pulingupitiya Branch 

Uva Province
Regional Office
District Office Badulla
District Office Monaragala
District Office Ampara
Badulla Branch
Passara Branch
Welimada Branch
Haputhale Branch
Kandeketiya Branch
Mahiyangana Branch
Rideemaliyadda Branch
Uva Paranagama Branch
Bandarawela Branch
Lunugala Branch

Meegahakivula Branch
Haldummulla Branch
Girandurukotte Branch
Bogahakumbura Branch
Buththala Branch
Medagama Branch
Monaragala Branch
Thanamalwila Branch
Wellawaya Branch
Badalkumbura Branch
Bibila Branch
Ampara Branch
Dehiaththakandiya Branch
Damana Branch
Sammanthurei Branch
Akkareipaththu Branch
Kalmune Branch
Mahaoya Branch
Pothuwil Branch
Uhana Branch
Maligathenna Branch
Siyambalanduwa Branch
Diyathalawa Branch
Sevanagala Branch
Ninthawur Branch
Madulla Branch
 

Central Province
Regional Office
Gampola Branch
Udawela Branch
Hatharaliyadda Branch
Marassana Branch
Danthure Branch
Waththegama Branch
Morayaya Branch
Theldeniya Branch
Pujapitiya Branch
Nuwara Eliya Branch
Rikillagaskada Branch
Marketing Information
Center Kandy
Ginigathhena Branch
Pundaluoya Branch
Katugasthota Branch
Nildandahinna Branch
Agarapathana Branch
Ududumbara Branch
Mathale Branch
Dambulla Branch
Galewela Branch
Laggala Branch
Raththota Branch
Kotagala Branch
Menikhinna Branch
Hanguranketha Branch
Dawlagala Branch
Naula Branch
Nawalapitiya Branch
Hedeniya Branch
Kandy Branch
Willagamuwa Branch

North Western 
Regional Office
District Office Kurunegala
District Office Chilaw
Kuliyapitiya Branch
Pannala Branch
Panduwasnuwara Branch

Alawwa Branch
Dummalasooriya Branch
Pothuhera Branch
Nikaweratiya Branch
Rideegama Branch
Mawathagama Branch
Wariyapola Branch
Kurunegala Branch
Galgamuwa Branch
Chilaw Branch
Palakuda Branch
Anamaduwa Branch
Naththandiya Branch
Kirimetiyana Branch
Puttlam Branch
Maho Branch
Giriulla Branch
Ibbagamuwa Branch
Mundel Branch
Nawagaththegama Branch
Mampuri Branch
Mahawewa Branch
Narammala Branch
Polpithigama Branch
Kurunegala Branch
Isuru Office - Chilaw
Melsiripura Branch
Ambanpola Branch
Bowaththa Branch

Western Province 
Regional Office
District Office Gampaha
Homagama Branch
Kolonnawa Branch
Awissawella Branch
Piliyandala Branch
Bulathsinhala Branch
Walagedara Branch
Agalawaththa Branch
Millaniya Branch
Gonapola Branch
Moronthuduwa Branch
Beruwala Branch
Panadura Branch
Horana Branch
Warakagoda Branch
Ingiriya Branch
Dodangoda Branch
Meegahathenna Branch
Baduraliya Branch
Kaluthara Branch
Moragahahena Branch
Mathugama Branch
Wadduwa Branch
Gampaha Branch
Mawaramandiya Branch
Minuwangoda Branch
Meerigama Branch
Negombo Branch
Kirindiwela Branch
Divulapitiya Branch
Nittambuwa Branch
Ragama Branch
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